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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549
______________________

FORM 10-Q
______________________

(Mark One)

☒ ☑ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023

OR

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from _____________ to ____________

Commission file number 001-04321

______________________

NUSCALE POWER CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

______________________

Delaware 98-1588588

(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

6650 SW Redwood Ln Suite 210 Portland Oregon 97224

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(971) 371-1592
Registrant's telephone number, including area code

Robert Temple

6650 SW Redwood Lane

Suite 210

Portland OR 97224

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading Symbol(s) Name of each exchange on which registered

Class A common stock, $0.0001 par value per share SMR New York Stock Exchange

Warrants, each whole warrant exercisable for one share of Class A common
stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share

SMR.WS New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports); and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and
post such files). Yes x No o
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o ☑

Non-accelerated filer ☑ o Smaller reporting company ☐

Emerging growth company ☑

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes o No x

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:

The registrant had 51,871,21670,441,214 Class A common shares, $0.0001 par value and 173,914,373157,090,820 Class B common shares, $0.0001 par value issued and outstanding
as of November 7, 2022May 5, 2023.
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Glossary

The definitions and abbreviations set forth below apply to the indicated terms used throughout this filing.

• “Class A common stock” refers to shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of
NuScale Power Corporation
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• “Class B common stock” refers to shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of
NuScale Power Corporation, which represents the right to one vote per share and carries no economic rights.
• “Combined interests” refers to the combination of shares of Class B shares of common stock and  NuScale LLC Class B units required to be exchanged for Class A shares common stock
• “common stock” refers collectively to shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock.
• “Closing” refers to the closing of the Merger.
• “DOE” refers to the U.S. Department of Energy.
• “EPCDA” refers to Engineering, Procurement, Construction Development Agreement
• “Exchange Act” refers to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
• “Fluor” refers to Fluor Enterprises, Inc., a California corporation, which is wholly owned by Fluor
Corporation (NYSE: FLR).
• “GAAP” refers to generally accepted accounting principles in the United States set
forth in the opinions and pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board or such other principles as may be approved by a significant segment of the accounting profession
in the United States,
that are applicable to the circumstances as of the date of determination, consistently applied.
• “G&A” expenses refers to general and administrative expenses.
• “IPO” or “Initial Public Offering” refers to the initial public offering of Spring Valley, which closed on
November 27, 2020.
• “Legacy NuScale Equityholders” refers to the holders of NuScale LLC Units other than NuScale Power Corporation Class B units
• “Merger” refers to the merger of Merger Sub with and into NuScale LLC, with NuScale LLC as the
surviving entity.
• “Merger Agreement” refers to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 13, 2021 (as
amended, modified, supplemented or waived from time to time), by and among between Spring Valley, Merger Sub
and NuScale LLC.
• “Merger Sub” refers to Spring Valley Merger Sub, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company and a
wholly owned subsidiary of Spring Valley.
• “MWe” refers to one million watts of electric power.
• “NPM” refers to NuScale Power Module™.
• “NRC” refers to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
• “NuScale Corp” refers to NuScale Power Corporation, a Delaware corporation and the combined
company following the consummation of the Transaction, and its consolidated subsidiaries, including
NuScale LLC.
• “NuScale Corp Warrants” refers collectively to the Public Warrants and the Private Placement Warrants.
• “NuScale LLC” refers to NuScale Power, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company.
• “NuScale LLC Class A Units” refers to the Class A units of NuScale LLC issued to NuScale Corp
immediately after the Closing.
• “NuScale LLC Class B Units” refers to non-voting, Class B units of NuScale LLC.
• “NuScale LLC Units” refers to the collective NuScale LLC limited liability company interests existing immediately after the Closing.
• “NYSE” means the New York Stock Exchange.
• “Private Placement Warrants” refers to the 8,900,000 warrants to purchase Spring Valley Class A ordinary shares that
were issued in a private placement concurrently with the IPO and converted in the Transaction into warrants to purchase Class A common shares. stock.
• “Public Warrants” refers to the 11,500,000 redeemable warrants issued in the IPO and converted in the Transaction
into warrants to purchase Class A common shares. stock.
• “R&D” refers to research and development.
• “SEC” refers to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
• “Securities Act” refers to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
• “SMR” means refers to small modular reactor.
• “Sponsor” refers to Spring Valley Acquisition Sponsor, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.
• “Sponsor Letter Agreement” refers to the sponsor letter agreement, dated as of December 13, 2021, by
and among Sponsor Sub, Spring Valley and NuScale LLC.
• “Sponsor Sub” refers to SV Acquisition Sponsor Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.
• “Spring Valley” refers to NuScale Corp prior to the Merger and prior to the change of its name from Spring Valley Acquisition Corp., a special purpose acquisition company  to NuScale
Power Corporation.
incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempt company.

• “Tax Receivable Agreement” or “TRA” refers to that certain the tax receivable agreement entered into
concurrent  concurrently with the Closing by and among between NuScale Corp, NuScale LLC and the Legacy NuScale
Equityholders.
• “Transaction” refers to the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.Agreement during the 2022 fiscal year.
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• “Warrants” refers collectively to the Public Warrants and the Private Placement Warrants.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act that are not
historical facts and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expected and projected. All statements, other than statements of
historical fact included in this Form 10-Q, including, without limitation, statements regarding our financial position and business strategy and the expectations, beliefs, intentions,
plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements. Words such as “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “continue,” “could,” “may,”
“might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “will,” “would,” “estimate,” “seek” and variations and similar words and expressions are intended to identify such forward-
looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report may include, for
example, statements about:

• our financial and business performance, including financial projections and business metrics;
• the ability to obtain regulatory approvals to deploy our SMRs in the United States and abroad;
• forecasts regarding end-customer adoption rates and demand for our products in markets that are new and rapidly evolving;
• macroeconomic conditions;
• developments and projections relating to our competitors and industry;
• our anticipated growth rates and market opportunities;
• the period over which we anticipate our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements;
• litigation contingencies;
• financial arrangements with CFPP LLC;
• the potential for our business development efforts to maximize the potential value of our portfolio; and
• our estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing.

Such forward-looking statements relate to future events or future performance, but reflect management’s current beliefs, based on information currently available. Many factors
could cause actual events, performance or results to differ materially from the events, performance and results discussed in the forward-looking statements, and there can be no
assurance that future developments affecting us will be those we have anticipated.

Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements, are described in the section titled “Risk Factors”
included in our 2022 10-K. If one or more of those risks or uncertainties materialize, or if any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from
those projected in those forward-looking statements. There may be additional risks that we currently consider immaterial, or which are unknown. It is not possible to predict or
identify all such risks. Except as expressly required by applicable securities law, we disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. No person should take any statement regarding past trends or activities as a representation that the trends or activities
will continue in the future.

Part I - Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

(in thousands, except

share and per share

amounts)

(in thousands, except

share and per share

amounts) September 30, 2022 December 31, 2021

(in thousands, except

share and per share

amounts) March 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

(unaudited) (unaudited)

ASSETS ASSETS ASSETS

Current assets Current assets Current assets
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Cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents $ 268,608  $ 77,094 

Cash and cash
equivalents $ 218,164  $ 217,685 

Short-term
investments

Short-term
investments 50,000  — 

Short-term
investments —  50,000 

Prepaid expenses Prepaid expenses 6,428  4,147  Prepaid expenses 7,304  5,531 

Accounts receivable 22,814  4,833 

Accounts and other
receivables

Accounts and other
receivables 20,992  11,199 

Total current assets Total current assets 347,850  86,074  Total current assets 246,460  284,415 

Property, plant and
equipment, net

Property, plant and
equipment, net 4,972  4,960 

Property, plant and
equipment, net 4,506  4,770 

In-process research
and development

In-process research
and development 16,900  16,900 

In-process research
and development 16,900  16,900 

Intangible assets, net Intangible assets, net 1,103  1,236 
Intangible assets,
net 1,015  1,059 

Goodwill Goodwill 8,255  8,255  Goodwill 8,255  8,255 

Restricted cash Restricted cash 18,900  —  Restricted cash 34,182  26,532 

Other assets Other assets 6,263  3,772  Other assets 5,054  6,704 

Long-term contract
work in process

Long-term contract
work in process 16,018  — 

Total assets Total assets $ 404,243  $ 121,197  Total assets $ 332,390  $ 348,635 

LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

Current liabilities Current liabilities Current liabilities

Accounts payable
and accrued
expenses

Accounts payable
and accrued
expenses $ 31,910  $ 22,375 

Accounts payable
and accrued
expenses $ 43,738  $ 27,951 

Accrued
compensation

Accrued
compensation 9,052  10,552 

Accrued
compensation 6,442  9,038 

Convertible notes payable —  14,041 

Other accrued
liabilities

Other accrued
liabilities 1,459  1,440 

Other accrued
liabilities 1,511  1,568 

Total current
liabilities

Total current
liabilities 42,421  48,408 

Total current
liabilities 51,691  38,557 

Warrant liabilities Warrant liabilities 38,211  —  Warrant liabilities 30,457  29,349 

Noncurrent liabilities Noncurrent liabilities 2,995  2,976  Noncurrent liabilities 2,433  2,786 

Deferred revenue Deferred revenue 1,131  1,415  Deferred revenue 1,078  856 

Total liabilities Total liabilities 84,758  52,799  Total liabilities 85,659  71,548 

Mezzanine Equity —  2,140 

Stockholders’
Equity

Stockholders’
Equity

Stockholders’
Equity

Convertible preferred units —  819,694 

Common units —  28,184 

Class A common stock, par value $0.0001
per share, 332,000,000 shares authorized,
51,820,595 shares issued and outstanding
as of September 30, 2022 5  — 

Class B common stock, par value $0.0001
per share, 179,000,000 shares authorized,
173,914,373 shares issued and outstanding
as of September 30, 2022 18  — 
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Class A common
stock, par value
$0.0001 per share,
332,000,000 shares
authorized,
70,061,055 shares
outstanding as of
March 31, 2023

Class A common
stock, par value
$0.0001 per share,
332,000,000 shares
authorized,
70,061,055 shares
outstanding as of
March 31, 2023 7  7 

Class B common
stock, par value
$0.0001 per share,
179,000,000 shares
authorized,
157,090,820 shares
outstanding as of
March 31, 2023

Class B common
stock, par value
$0.0001 per share,
179,000,000 shares
authorized,
157,090,820 shares
outstanding as of
March 31, 2023 16  16 

Additional paid-in
capital

Additional paid-in
capital 272,217  — 

Additional paid-in
capital 302,487  296,748 

Accumulated deficit Accumulated deficit (169,478) (781,620) Accumulated deficit (193,054) (182,092)

Total Stockholders’
Equity Excluding
Noncontrolling
Interests

Total Stockholders’
Equity Excluding
Noncontrolling
Interests 102,762  66,258 

Total Stockholders’
Equity Excluding
Noncontrolling
Interests 109,456  114,679 

Noncontrolling
interests

Noncontrolling
interests 216,723  — 

Noncontrolling
interests 137,275  162,408 

Total Stockholders'
Equity

Total Stockholders'
Equity 319,485  66,258 

Total Stockholders'
Equity 246,731  277,087 

Total Liabilities, Mezzanine Equity and
Stockholders' Equity $ 404,243  $ 121,197 

Total Liabilities
and Stockholders'
Equity

Total Liabilities
and Stockholders'
Equity $ 332,390  $ 348,635 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Unaudited)

(in thousands,

except share and

per share

amounts)

(in thousands,

except share and

per share

amounts) Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands, except

share and per share

amounts) Three Months Ended March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021 2023 2022

Revenue Revenue $ 3,172  $ 297  $ 8,366  $ 1,333  Revenue $ 5,505  $ 2,445 

Cost of sales Cost of sales (1,749) (156) (4,693) (807) Cost of sales (3,416) (1,205)

Gross margin Gross margin 1,423  141  3,673  526  Gross margin 2,089  1,240 

Research and
development
expenses

Research and
development
expenses 34,317  26,370  87,325  66,021 

Research and
development
expenses 25,715  24,380 

General and
administrative
expenses

General and
administrative
expenses 18,473  13,686  44,436  32,524 

General and
administrative
expenses 14,695  10,520 

Other expenses Other expenses 14,731  5,921  34,524  25,222  Other expenses 17,151  10,188 

Loss from
operations

Loss from
operations (66,098) (45,836) (162,612) (123,241)

Loss from
operations (55,472) (43,848)

Department of Energy cost share 18,377  18,839  64,016  50,408 

Increase (decrease) in fair value of
warrant liabilities (2,833) —  3,287  — 

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us

©2023 Refi nitiv.  Al l  rights reserved. Republ ication or redistribution of Refi nitiv content, including
by fram ing or sim i lar m eans, is prohibi ted
w ithout the prior w ri tten consent of Refi nitiv.  'Refi nitiv' and the Refi nitiv logo  are
registered tradem arks of Refi nitiv and i ts affi l iated
com panies.

8/75

Other cost share (interest expense) 924  (104) 926  (1,613)

Sponsored cost
share

Sponsored cost
share 17,873  20,577 

Decrease
(increase) in fair
value of warrant
liabilities

Decrease
(increase) in fair
value of warrant
liabilities (1,108) — 

Interest income
(expense)

Interest income
(expense) 3,097  (102)

Loss before
income taxes

Loss before
income taxes (49,630) (27,101) (94,383) (74,446)

Loss before
income taxes (35,610) (23,373)

Provision
(benefit) for
income taxes

Provision
(benefit) for
income taxes —  —  —  — 

Provision
(benefit) for
income taxes —  — 

Net loss Net loss (49,630) (27,101) (94,383) (74,446) Net loss (35,610) (23,373)

Net loss
attributable to
legacy NuScale
LLC holders prior
to Transaction

Net loss
attributable to
legacy NuScale
LLC holders prior
to Transaction —  —  (31,155) — 

Net loss
attributable to
legacy NuScale
LLC holders prior
to Transaction —  (23,373)

Net loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests

Net loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests (38,923) —  (49,928) — 

Net loss
attributable to
noncontrolling
interests (24,648) — 

Net Loss
Attributable to
Class A
Common
Stockholders

Net Loss
Attributable to
Class A
Common
Stockholders $ (10,707) $ (27,101) $ (13,300) $ (74,446)

Net Loss
Attributable to
Class A
Common
Stockholders $ (10,962) $ — 

Loss Per Share
of Class A
Common Stock:

Loss Per Share
of Class A
Common Stock:

Loss Per Share
of Class A
Common Stock:

Basic and Diluted Basic and Diluted $ (0.23) $ —  $ (0.30) $ —  Basic and Diluted $ (0.16) $ — 

Weighted-
Average Shares
of Class A
Common Stock
Outstanding:

Weighted-
Average Shares
of Class A
Common Stock
Outstanding:

Weighted-
Average Shares
of Class A
Common Stock
Outstanding:

Basic and Diluted Basic and Diluted 46,417,563  —  44,087,767  —  Basic and Diluted 69,684,268  — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Mezzanine Equity

Convertible Preferred

Units Common Units Class A Class B

Additional

Paid-in

Capital

Accumulated

Deficit

Noncontrolling

Interests

Total


Stockholders’

EquityUnits Amount Units Amount Units Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balances at June 30,

2022 (unaudited) —  $ —  —  $ —  —  $ —  42,028  $ 4  178,397  $ 18  $ 221,379  $ (158,771) $ 269,108  $ 331,738 

Exercise of common

unit options —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Repurchase of common

units —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 
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Issuance of treasury

units —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Conversion of equity

award to liability award —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Equity-based

compensation expense —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  3,585  —  —  3,585 

Reverse

recapitalization, net —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Exercise of common

share options and

warrants —  —  —  —  —  —  3,666  1  —  —  33,791  —  —  33,792 

Issuance of earn-out

shares upon triggering

event —  —  —  —  —  —  1,644  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Conversion of

combined interest into

Class A shares —  —  —  —  —  —  4,482  —  (4,482) —  —  —  —  — 

Rebalancing of

ownership percentage

for conversion of

combined interest into

Class A shares —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  13,462  —  (13,462) — 

Net loss attributable to

legacy NuScale prior to

Transaction —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Net loss after the

Transaction —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (10,707) (38,923) (49,630)

Balances at

September 30, 2022

(unaudited) —  $ —  —  $ —  —  $ —  51,820  $ 5  173,915  $ 18  $ 272,217  $ (169,478) $ 216,723  $ 319,485 

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Class A Class B
Additional

Paid-in Capital
Accumulated

Deficit
Noncontrolling

Interests

Total

Stockholders’


EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balances at December 31, 2022 69,353  $ 7  157,091  $ 16  $ 296,748 $ (182,092) $ 162,408  $ 277,087 

Equity-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  3,637  —  —  3,637 

Exercise of common share options and
warrants and vested RSUs 708  —  —  —  1,617  —  —  1,617 

Rebalancing of ownership percentage for
conversion of combined interest into Class
A shares —  —  —  —  485  —  (485) — 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  (10,962) (24,648) (35,610)

Balances at March 31, 2023 (unaudited) 70,061  $ 7  157,091  $ 16  $ 302,487  $ (193,054) $ 137,275  $ 246,731 

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Mezzanine Equity

Convertible Preferred

Units Common Units Class A Class B Additional

Paid-in Capital

Accumulated

Deficit

Noncontrolling

Interests

Total

Stockholders’


EquityUnits Amount Units Amount Units Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balances at December

31, 2021 6,000  $ 2,140  633,261  $ 819,694  9,074  $ 28,184  —  $ —  —  $ —  $ — $ (781,620) $ —  $ 66,258 
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Exercise of common

unit options —  —  —  —  3,764  847  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  847 

Repurchase of

common units —  —  —  —  (358) (566) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (566)

Issuance of treasury

units —  —  —  —  12  20  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  20 

Conversion of equity

award to liability award —  —  —  —  —  (50) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (50)

Equity-based

compensation expense —  —  —  —  —  1,359  —  —  —  4,358  —  —  5,717 

Reverse

recapitalization, net (6,000) (2,140) (633,261) (819,694) (12,492) (29,794) 42,028  4  178,397  18  220,606  656,597  280,113  307,850 

Exercise of common

share options and

warrants —  —  —  —  —  —  3,666  1  —  —  33,791  —  —  33,792 

Issuance of earn-out

shares upon triggering

event —  —  —  —  —  —  1,644  —  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Conversion of

combined interest into

Class A shares —  —  —  —  —  —  4,482  —  (4,482) —  —  —  —  — 

Rebalancing of

ownership percentage

for conversion of

combined interest into

Class A shares —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  13,462  —  (13,462) — 

Net loss attributable to

legacy NuScale prior to

Transaction —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (31,155) —  (31,155)

Net loss after the

Transaction —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (13,300) (49,928) (63,228)

Balances at

September 30, 2022

(unaudited) —  $ —  —  $ —  —  $ —  51,820  $ 5  173,915  $ 18  $ 272,217  $ (169,478) $ 216,723  $ 319,485 

(in thousands)

Mezzanine Convertible Preferred Units Common Units
Accumulated

Deficit

Total


Stockholders’


EquityUnits Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Balances at December 31, 2021 6,000  $ 2,140  633,261  $ 819,694  9,074  $ 28,184  $ (781,620) $ 66,258 

Equity-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  —  1,021  —  1,021 

Exercise of common unit options —  —  —  —  2,928  470  —  470 

Conversion of equity award to liability award —  —  —  —  —  (50) —  (50)

Repurchase of common units —  —  —  —  (343) (563) (563)

Issuance of treasury shares —  —  —  —  12  20  —  20 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  —  (23,373) (23,373)

Balances at March 31, 2022 (unaudited) 6,000  $ 2,140  633,261  $ 819,694  11,671  $ 29,082  $ (804,993) $ 43,783 

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
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(in thousands)
Mezzanine Convertible Preferred Units Common Units

Accumulated Deficit

Total

Stockholders’


EquityUnits Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Balances at June 30, 2021 (unaudited) 6,000  $ 2,140  591,239  $ 727,668  8,182  $ 25,554  $ (726,472) $ 26,750 

Sale of convertible preferred units 36,530  80,000  5,480  12,000  —  —  —  12,000 

Issuance of convertible preferred units —  —  12  26  —  —  —  26 

Exercise of common unit options —  —  —  —  86  38  —  38 

Repurchase of common units —  —  —  —  (15) (17) —  (17)

Issuance of treasury shares —  —  —  —  18  19  —  19 

Equity-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  —  1,097  —  1,097 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  —  (27,101) (27,101)

Balances at September 30, 2021 (unaudited) 42,530  $ 82,140  596,731  $ 739,694  8,271  $ 26,691  $ (753,573) $ 12,812 

(in thousands)

Mezzanine Convertible Preferred Units Common Units

Accumulated Deficit

Total

Stockholders’


EquityUnits Amount Units Amount Units Amount

Balances at December 31, 2020 6,000  $ 2,140  542,729  $ 629,089  5,492  $ 20,899  $ (679,127) $ (29,139)

Sale of convertible preferred units 36,530  80,000  53,970  110,540  —  —  —  110,540 

Issuance of convertible preferred units —  —  32  65  —  —  —  65 

Exercise of common unit options —  —  —  —  2,710  432  —  432 

Repurchase of common units —  —  —  —  (15) (17) (17)

Issuance of treasury shares —  —  —  —  84  92  —  92 

Equity-based compensation expense —  —  —  —  —  5,285  —  5,285 

Net loss —  —  —  —  —  —  (74,446) (74,446)

Balances at September 30, 2021 (unaudited) 42,530  $ 82,140  596,731  $ 739,694  8,271  $ 26,691  $ (753,573) $ 12,812 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

NuScale Power Corporation

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Nine months ended

September 30,

2022 2021

OPERATING CASH FLOW

Net loss $ (94,383) $ (74,446)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to operating cash flow:

   Depreciation 1,881  1,517 

   Amortization of intangibles 133  133 

   Equity-based compensation expense 5,717  5,285 

Increase (decrease) in the fair value of warrant liabilities (3,287) — 

   Net noncash change in right of use assets and lease liabilities 9,331  1,126 

   Changes in assets and liabilities:

      Prepaid expenses and other assets (9,785) 52 

      Accounts receivable (17,981) (12,333)

      Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,799  2,913 

      Lease liability (1,266) (1,113)

      Deferred DOE cost share (104) 394 

      Deferred revenue (284) 818 

      Accrued compensation (1,499) 2,265 

Net cash used in operating activities (104,728) (73,389)

INVESTING CASH FLOW
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Purchases of short-term investments (50,000) — 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,744) (1,573)

Net cash used in investing activities (51,744) (1,573)

FINANCING CASH FLOW

Proceeds from Transaction, net 341,462  — 

Payments of Transaction costs (2,401) — 

Proceeds from debt issuance —  27,200 

Repayment of debt —  (47,493)

Proceeds from sale of convertible preferred units —  192,500 

Proceeds from exercise of common unit options 847  432 

Repurchase of common units (566) (17)

Issuance of treasury units 20  93 

Proceeds from exercise of warrants and common share options 27,524  — 

Net cash provided by financing activities 366,886  172,715 

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 210,414  97,753 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Beginning of period 77,094  4,864 

End of period $ 287,508  $ 102,617 

Summary of noncash investing and financing activities:

Assumption of Transaction warrant liabilities 47,532  — 

Debt converted to equity 14,181  — 

Conversion of equity options to liability award 50  — 

Conversion of accounts payable to convertible preferred units —  66 

Equity issuance fees —  1,960 

Capital expenditures in accounts payable 149  214 

Warrants converted into equity 6,268  — 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest —  1,478 

(in thousands)

Three months ended

March 31,

2023 2022

OPERATING CASH FLOW

Net loss $ (35,610) $ (23,373)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to operating cash flow:

   Depreciation 615  577 

   Amortization of intangibles 44  44 

   Equity-based compensation expense 3,637  1,021 

   Change in the fair value of warrant liabilities 1,108  — 

   Net noncash change in right of use assets and lease liabilities (345) 406 

   Changes in assets and liabilities:

      Prepaid expenses and other assets (99) (1,371)

      Accounts receivable (9,793) (2,716)

      Accounts payable and accrued expenses (170) (646)

      Lease liability (150) (452)

      Deferred DOE cost share —  (105)

      Deferred revenue 222  (773)

      Accrued compensation (2,596) (5,763)

Net cash used in operating activities (43,137) (33,151)

INVESTING CASH FLOW

Sale of short-term investments 50,000  — 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (351) (1,187)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 49,649  (1,187)

FINANCING CASH FLOW
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Proceeds from exercise of common unit options —  470 

Repurchase of common units —  (563)

Issuance of treasury units —  20 

Proceeds from exercise of warrants and common share options 1,617  — 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,617  (73)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 8,129  (34,411)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Beginning of period 244,217  77,094 

End of period $ 252,346  $ 42,683 

Summary of noncash investing and financing activities:

Conversion of equity options to liability award $ —  $ 1,540 

Long-term contract work in process in accounts payable 16,018  — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

1. Nature of Business

Organization and Operations

NuScale Power Corporation (“NuScale Corp”, the “Company”, “us”, “we” or the “Company” “our”) is commercializing a modular, scalable 77 MWe (gross) light water reactor
nuclear power plant using exclusive rights to a nuclear power plant design obtained from Oregon State University. The Company is majority owned by Fluor.

2. Merger Transaction
Merger with Spring Valley

In December 2021, NuScale LLC entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Spring Valley Acquisition Corp. (“Spring Valley”) and Spring Valley
Merger Sub, LLC (“Merger Sub”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Spring Valley. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into NuScale LLC (the “Merger”),
with NuScale LLC surviving the Merger (the “Surviving Company”), Spring Valley being renamed NuScale Corp, and NuScale LLC continuing to be held as a wholly controlled
subsidiary of NuScale Power Corporation in an “Up-C” structure. On May 2, 2022, the Merger Agreement and Merger (collectively the “Transaction”) was completed.

The Transaction is shown as a reverse recapitalization under GAAP. Spring Valley is the acquired company, with NuScale LLC treated as the acquirer. This determination reflects
Legacy NuScale Equityholders holding a majority of the voting power of NuScale Corp, NuScale LLC’s pre-merger operations being the majority post-merger operations of
NuScale Corp, and NuScale LLC’s management team retaining similar roles at NuScale Corp. Accordingly, although Spring Valley is the legal parent company, GAAP dictates that
the financial statements of NuScale Corp will represent a continuation of NuScale LLC’s operations, with the Transaction being treated as though NuScale LLC issued ownership
interests for Spring Valley, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of NuScale LLC are stated at historical cost, with no incremental goodwill or other intangible assets
recorded for the effects of the Transaction with Spring Valley.

The following table provides the historical cost of the assets and liabilities assumed as a result of the Transaction:

Cash $ 341,462 

Warrant liabilities (47,532)

   Total net assets $ 293,930 

In connection with the Transaction:

• Each Convertible Preferred Unit of NuScale LLC was converted into common units using an exchange ratio, and each NuScale LLC common unit holder received a certain
number of Surviving Company Class B common units and non-economic voting shares of NuScale Corp Class B common stock based on an exchange ratio. Holders of
Surviving Company Class B common units have the right to exchange each Class B common unit, together with the cancellation for no consideration of one share of NuScale
Corp Class B common stock, par value $0.0001, for one share of NuScale Corp Class A common stock, par value $0.0001, or cash, subject to certain restrictions.

• Institutional and accredited investors purchased 23,700,002 shares of Class A common stock for an aggregate amount of $235,000.

• The convertible loan held by Fluor, identified in the December 31, 2021 balance sheet as convertible note payable, was converted into 8,257,560 NuScale LLC Class B units in

April 2022 (which then received Surviving Company common units and non-economic voting shares of NuScale Power Corporation Class B common stock).
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NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

The Transaction resulted in NuScale LLC receiving cash in the amount of $341,462, consisting of $235,000 through the private sale of equity securities (“PIPE”) and $145,525 in
cash in trust, partially offset by transaction costs of $39,063.

The following summarizes the common stock outstanding immediately following the Transaction, on May 3, 2022:

Shares %

Spring Valley Class A Shareholders 14,400,369 6.5 %

Spring Valley Founders (A) 3,871,009 1.8 %

Total Spring Valley 18,271,378 8.3 %

Legacy NuScale Equityholders 178,396,711 81.0 %

PIPE Shares 23,700,002 10.8 %

Total Shares at Closing (excluding shares below) 220,368,091 100.0 %

Remaining NuScale Consideration Shares - upon Exercise of NuScale Corp Options 14,742,933

Other - Earn Out Shares (B) 1,643,924

Total Shares 236,754,948

(A) Includes an aggregate of 120,000 Spring Valley Class B ordinary shares that were issued to Spring Valley’s independent directors.

(B) Spring Valley Founders Shares includes “Earn Out Shares”. Fifty percent of the Earn Out Shares vest, pursuant to the Sponsor Letter Agreement, if NuScale Corp trades at
$12.00 per share or higher over any 20 trading days within a 30-day window during the 60 months following the closing and the dollar volume-weighted average price (“VWAP”)
is greater than or equal to $12.00 per share. The remainder of the Earn Out Shares vest if NuScale Corp trades at $14.00 per share or higher over any 20 trading days within a
30-day window during the 60 months following the closing and the VWAP is greater than or equal to $14.00 per share.

Warrants

The Private Placement Warrants and the Public Warrants (collectively the “Warrants”) are included on the balance sheet as Warrant liabilities. We are required to measure the
fair value of the Warrants at the end of each reporting period. The rights of Warrant holders are described in note 5 and the valuation methodology for the Warrants is
described in note 6.

Tax Receivable Agreements

Substantially all of the assets of the combined company are held by NuScale LLC, and NuScale Corp’s only assets are its equity interest in NuScale LLC and prepaid insurance.
NuScale Corp entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”) with NuScale LLC, each of the TRA Holders (as defined in the TRA), and Fluor, in its capacity as TRA
Representative. Pursuant to the TRA, NuScale Corp must pay 85% of the net cash tax savings from certain tax benefits, if any, that it realizes (or in certain cases is deemed to
realize) as a result of any increases in tax basis and other tax benefits resulting from any exchange by the TRA holders of NuScale LLC Class B units for shares of Class A
common stock or cash in the future.

NuScale Corp will benefit from the remaining 15% of cash tax savings, if any, realized as a result of such tax benefits. Cash tax savings will be computed by comparing NuScale
Corp’s actual income tax liability to the amount of such taxes that NuScale Corp would have been required to pay had there been no increase to the tax basis of its assets as a
result of the Transaction or the exchanges and had NuScale Corp not entered into the TRA (calculated by making certain assumptions).

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

As of September 30, 2022, there have been 4,482,338 Class B units exchanged for shares of Class A common stock. NuScale Corp maintains a full valuation allowance and no
liability related to projected obligations under the TRA has been recorded.

3. 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
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The Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes do not include notes and certain financial information normally presented annually
under GAAP, and therefore should be read in conjunction with the 2021 audited financial statements of NuScale LLC, and the notes thereto.our 2022 Annual Report on Form
10-K. Accounting measures at interim dates inherently involve greater reliance on estimates than at year-end. Although such estimates are based on management’s most
recent assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances utilizing the most current information available, our reported results of operations may not necessarily be
indicative of results that we expect for the full year.

These financial statements are unaudited. In management’s opinion, they contain all adjustments of a normal recurring nature which are necessary to present fairly our
financial position and our operating results as of and for the interim periods presented.

Changes in Presentation

Prior year amounts totaling $1,055 have been reclassified out of general and administrative expenses to other expenses to conform to the current year presentation on the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Principles of Consolidation

As part of the Transaction, NuScale Corp has been determined to be the primary beneficiary of NuScale Power, LLC (“NuScale LLC”), a variable interest entity (“VIE”). As the sole
managing member of NuScale LLC, NuScale Corp has both the power to direct the activities, and direct ownership to share in the revenues and expenses of NuScale LLC. As
such, all the activity of NuScale LLC has been consolidated in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements. All assets and liabilities included in the balance
sheet are that of NuScale LLC, other than the NuScale Corp Warrants and certain prepaid insurance. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated upon
consolidation.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

Changes in Presentation

Prior year amounts totaling $115, previously identified as Other cost share (interest expense) but currently described as Interest income (expense), have been reclassified to
Sponsored other cost share to conform to the current year presentation on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash equivalents represent short-term, highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible to cash and have maturities of three months or less at time of purchase. Cash
equivalents with an initial maturity of between three and twelve months at time of purchase are presented as short-term investments on the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet. Cash equivalents and short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit. These certificates of deposit are classified as held-to-maturity, and
the estimated fair value of the investment approximates its amortized cost.

Cash in the amount of $18,900$34,182 is restricted as collateral for the letter of credit associated with the Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement (“DCRA”) at September
30, 2022March 31, 2023 (See Note 14) 13). The DCRA spans multiple years requiring the amount to be classified as a noncurrent asset, included in Restricted cash in the
accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet. The Restricted cash balance plus Cash and cash equivalents on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance
sheet equals cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, as reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of cash flows.

Warrant Liability

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

The Company accounts for the Warrants in accordance with the guidance contained in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 815, “Derivatives and Hedging”, under which
the Warrants do not meet the criteria for equity treatment and must be recorded as liabilities. Accordingly, the Company classifies the Warrants as liabilities at their fair value
and adjusts the warrants to fair value at each reporting period. This liability is subject to re-measurement at each balance sheet date until exercised, and any change in fair
value is recognized in the Company’s condensed consolidated statements of operations. The fair value of the Public and Private Placement Warrants has been estimated using
the Public Warrants’ quoted market price. See note 54 for further discussion of the terms of the Warrants and note 65 for further discussion of the methodology used to
determine the value of the Warrants.

Sponsored cost share

As we continue to advance our commercialization activities, we have begun to enter into cost share agreements with various entities, including both governmental and private,
whereby NuScale is reimbursed for specific R&D performed. Currently, these entities include the DOE, United State Trade and Development Agency (“USTDA”) and CFPP, among
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others.

Beginning in 2014, the U.S. DOE has provided critical funding to NuScale through a series of cooperative agreements which support ongoing commercialization activities. During
the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, DOE cost share totaled $12,354 and $20,462, respectively. Beginning in 2021, NuScale partnered with the USTDA to develop
SMRs in foreign markets. Under the USTDA’s technical assistance grant program we receive cost share commitments to support licensing work in these foreign markets. During
the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, USTDA cost share totaled $2,415 and $115, respectively. Finally, we receive cost share from CFPP, LLC as a subrecipient under
a contract between the DOE and UAMPS for R&D performed with the goal of developing our first SMR. Under this agreement we received cost share of $2,939 during the three
months ended March 31, 2023, with no cost share during the same period in the prior year.

Income Taxes

NuScale Corp accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether
it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated by applying existing tax laws and the rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets
and liabilities is recognized in the year of the enacted rate change.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes using a recognition and measurement threshold for tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, which
are subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities. The tax benefit from an uncertain tax position is recognized when it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities based on technical merits of the position. The amount of the tax benefit recognized is the largest amount of the
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The effective tax rate and the tax basis of assets and liabilities reflect management’s
estimates of the ultimate outcome of various tax uncertainties. Once identified, the Company will recognize penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positions within the
provision (benefit) for income taxes line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

NuScale LLC is a limited liability company treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes that is not subject to U.S. federal income tax. As such, its net taxable
income or loss and any related tax credits are allocated to its members.

4. 3. Noncontrolling Interests and Loss Per Share

Noncontrolling Interests

Following the Transaction, holders of Class A common stock own direct controlling interest in the results of the combined entity, while the Legacy NuScale Equityholders own
an economic interest in NuScale LLC, shown as noncontrolling interests (“NCI”) in equity in NuScale Corp’s condensed consolidated financial statements. The indirect economic
interests are held by Legacy NuScale Equityholders in the form of NuScale LLC Class B Units. The following table summarizes the economic interests of NuScale Corp between
the holders of Class A common stock and indirect economic interests held by NuScale LLC Class B unitholders as of and for the three months ended September 30, 2022 and for
the period from May 2, 2022 through September 30, 2022March 31, 2023:

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

Noncontrolling Interest
As of and for the three months

ended
As of and for the period from

May 2, 2022 through

September 30, 2022 September 30, 2022

NuScale Corp Class A common stock

   Beginning of period 42,028,341  42,028,341 

      Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock 4,482,338  4,482,338 

      Exercise of options and warrants 3,666,032  3,666,032 

      Vesting of earn out shares 1,643,924  1,643,924 

   End of period 51,820,635  51,820,635 

NuScale LLC Class B Units (NCI)
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   Beginning of period 178,396,711  178,396,711 

     Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock (4,482,338) (4,482,338)

  End of period 173,914,373  173,914,373 

Total

   Beginning of period 220,425,052  220,425,052 

      Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock —  — 

      Exercise of options and warrants 3,666,032  3,666,032 

      Vesting of earn out shares 1,643,924  1,643,924 

   End of period 225,735,008  225,735,008 

Ownership Percentage

NuScale Corp Class A common stock

   Beginning of period 19.1 % 19.1 %

   End of period 23.0 % 23.0 %

NuScale LLC Class B Units (NCI)

   Beginning of period 80.9 % 80.9 %

   End of period 77.0 % 77.0 %

Noncontrolling Interest
As of and for the three months

ended

March 31, 2023

NuScale Corp Class A common stock

   Beginning of period 69,353,019 

      Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock — 

      Exercise of options and warrants and vested RSUs 708,036 

   End of period 70,061,055 

NuScale LLC Class B Units (NCI)

   Beginning of period 157,090,820 

     Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock — 

  End of period 157,090,820 

Total

   Beginning of period 226,443,839 

      Conversion of combined interests into Class A common stock — 

      Exercise of options and warrants and vested RSUs 708,036 

   End of period 227,151,875 

Ownership Percentage

NuScale Corp Class A common stock

   Beginning of period 30.6 %

   End of period 30.8 %

NuScale LLC Class B Units (NCI)

   Beginning of period 69.4 %

   End of period 69.2 %

The NCI may decrease according to the number of shares of Class B common stock and NuScale LLC Class B units that are exchanged for shares of Class A common stock or, in
certain circumstances including at the election of NuScale Corp, cash in an amount equal to the fair value of Class A common stock received in a contemporaneous equity
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issuance. After each exchange, NuScale LLC equity attributable to NuScale Corp is rebalanced to reflect the change in ownership percentage, which is calculated above based
on Class B units and Class A shares, as a percentage of Combined interests.

During the three months ended September 30, 2022, the earn out shares associated with the merger became vested, as the VWAP of the Company’s share price exceeded $12.00 and
then $14.00 for the required time period. These Class A shares are now outstanding and included in our weighted-average shares calculation.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

Loss Per Share

Prior to the Transaction, the membership structure of NuScale LLC included units that had profit interests. The Company analyzed the calculation of net loss per unit for
periods prior to the Transaction and determined that it resulted in values that would not be meaningful to the readers of these financial statements. Therefore, net loss per
unit information has not been presented for periods prior to May 2, 2022.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

Basic loss per share is based on the average number of shares of Class A common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share is based on the average number
of shares of Class A common stock used for the basic earnings per share calculation, adjusted for the dilutive effect of RSUs, Stock Options Warrants and Earn Out Shares, if
any, Warrants using the “treasury stock” method and for all other interests that convert into potential shares of Class A common stock, if any, using the “if converted” method.
Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders for diluted loss per share is adjusted for the Company’s share of NuScale LLC’s net loss, net of NuScale Corp taxes, after
giving effect to all other interests that convert into potential shares of Class A common stock, to the extent it is dilutive. In addition, net loss attributable to Class A common
stockholders for diluted loss per share is adjusted for the after-tax impact of changes to the fair value of derivative liabilities, to the extent the Company’s Warrants are dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share of Class A common stock and represents the three months ended September 30, 2022
and the period from May 3, 2022 to September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, the period where the Company had Class A and Class B common stock outstanding. Class B common
stock represents a right to cast one vote per share at the NuScale Corp level, and carry no economic rights, including rights to dividends or distributions upon liquidation, and
as a result, is not considered a participating security for basic and diluted loss per share. As such, basic and diluted loss per share of Class B common stock has not been
presented.

Three Months Ended September 30,
2022

May 2, 2022 Through September
30, 2022

Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders $ (10,707) (13,300)

Weighted-average shares for basic and diluted loss per share 46,417,563  44,087,767 

Basic and Diluted loss per share of Class A common stock $ (0.23) $ (0.30)

Anti-dilutive securities excluded from shares outstanding:

    Class B common shares 173,914,373  173,914,373 

    Stock options 12,971,828  12,971,828 

    Warrants 18,459,203  18,459,203 

    Time-based RSUs 2,163,743  2,163,743 

Total 207,509,147  207,509,147 
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Three Months Ended March 31,
2023

Net loss attributable to Class A common stockholders $ (10,962)

Weighted-average shares for basic and diluted loss per share 69,684,268 

Basic and Diluted loss per share of Class A common stock $ (0.16)

Anti-dilutive securities excluded from shares outstanding:

    Class B common shares 157,090,820 

    Stock options 11,447,940 

    Warrants 18,458,701 

    Time-based RSUs 3,910,760 

Total 190,908,221 

5. 4. Warrant Liabilities

As of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, the Company had 9,559,2039,558,701 Public Warrants and 8,900,000 Private Placement Warrants outstanding. For the three months
ended September 30, 2022 and the period from May 2, 2022 through September 30, 2022, 1,940,797 warrants were exchanged for cash of $22,319.

Warrants may only be exercised for a whole number of shares. No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the Warrants. The Warrants are currently exercisable and will
expire five years from the date of the Transaction or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

Redemption of Warrants when the price per share of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00. The Company may redeem the outstanding Warrants (except as described
with respect to the Private Placement Warrants):

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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• in whole and not in part;
• at a price of $0.01 per Warrant;
• upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption to each Warrant holder; and
• if the closing price of the Class A common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share (as adjusted) for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending three

trading days before the Company sends the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders.

If and when the Warrants become redeemable by the Company, the Company may exercise its redemption right even if it is unable to register or qualify the underlying
securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

Redemption of Warrants when the price per share of Class A common stock equals or exceeds $10.00. The Company may redeem the outstanding warrants:
• in whole and not in part;
• at $0.10 per Warrant upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption provided that holders will be able to exercise their Warrants on a cashless basis

prior to redemption and receive that number of shares determined based on the redemption date and the fair market value of the Class A common stock;
• if, and only if, the closing price of the Class A common stock equals or exceeds $10.00 per public share (as adjusted) for any 20 trading days within the 30-trading day

period ending three trading days before the Company sends the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders; and
• if the closing price of the Class A common stock for any 20 trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the

Company sends the notice of redemption to the Warrant holders is less than $18.00 per share (as adjusted), the Private Placement Warrants must also be concurrently
called for redemption on the same terms as the outstanding Public Warrants.

If the Company calls the Public Warrants for redemption, as described above, the exercise price and number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the Public Warrants
may be adjusted in certain circumstances including in the event of a share dividend, extraordinary dividend or recapitalization, reorganization, merger, or consolidation.

Beginning on the 30th day following the Transaction, the Private Placement Warrants became almost identical to the Public Warrants sold in the Spring Valley Initial Public
Offering. Additionally, the Private Placement Warrants are exercisable on a cashless basis and are non-redeemable, except as described above, so long as they are held by the
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initial purchasers or their permitted transferees. If the Private Placement Warrants are held by someone other than the initial purchasers or their permitted transferees, the
Private Placement Warrants will be redeemable by the Company and exercisable by such holders on the same basis as the Public Warrants.

6. 5. Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the Company uses a three-level hierarchy, which prioritizes fair value
measurements based on the types of inputs used for the various valuation techniques (market approach, income approach and cost approach).

The levels of hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments;

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations
in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and

Level 3 Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or
liability. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the most stringent level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The carrying amount of certain financial instruments, including deposits, accounts payable, accrued expenses and convertible notes payable approximates fair value due to
their short maturities.

Our Warrants are accounted for as liabilities pursuant to ASC 815-40 and are measured at fair value as of each reporting period. Changes in fair value of the Warrants are
recorded in the statement consolidated statements of operations each period. Due to the similarity of the features of the Public and Private Warrants, management has
concluded that the

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

price of the Public Warrants would be used in the valuation of the Private Placement Warrants. However, since the two types of Warrants are not identical and the Private
Warrants are not actively traded, we have classified the Private Placement Warrants as Level 2, while the Public Warrants are classified as Level 1.

The following table represents the Company’s financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023:

(in thousands) (in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total (in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Warrant
Liabilities:

Warrant
Liabilities:  

Warrant
Liabilities:  

Public
Warrants

Public
Warrants $ 19,788  $ —  $ —  $ 19,788 

Public
Warrants $ 15,772  $ —  $ —  $ 15,772 

Private
Placement
Warrants

Private
Placement
Warrants —  18,423  —  18,423 

Private
Placement
Warrants —  14,685  —  14,685 

Total Warrant Liabilities as
of September 30, 2022 $ 19,788  $ 18,423  $ —  $ 38,211 

Total
Warrant
Liabilities as
of March 31,
2023

Total
Warrant
Liabilities as
of March 31,
2023 $ 15,772  $ 14,685  $ —  $ 30,457 

7. 6. Accounts Receivable and Other Receivables
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Accounts receivable includesand other receivables include reimbursement requests outstanding from the DOE awards, which interest receivable and commercial accounts
receivable associated with other federal projects. The DOE reimbursement requests are recognized as eligible costs are incurred. At December 31, 2021, accounts receivable are
presented net of $10,237 of related deferred DOE cost share liabilities that have the right of offset. As of September 30, 2022, there were no amounts required to be offset.
Reimbursement under the awards is  recognized as award funds are obligated, and are included in Department of Energy Cost Share in the Statement consolidated statement
of Operations.operations. Interest receivable of $329 was outstanding at March 31, 2023.

The majority of our receivables are either due from the U.S. federal government or have to do with a federal project. For these reasons, all receivables are deemed to be fully
collectible and no allowance has been recorded.

8. 7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

March 31, December 31,

(in thousands) 2023 2022

Furniture and fixtures $ 145  $ 173 

Office and computer equipment 7,475  7,393 

Software 13,918  13,864 

Test equipment 347  347 

Leasehold improvements 2,281  2,312 

24,166  24,089 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (19,947) (19,431)

Add: Assets under development 287  112 

Net property, plant and equipment $ 4,506  $ 4,770 

September 30, December 31,

(in thousands) 2022 2021

Furniture and fixtures $ 173  $ 173 

Office and computer equipment 7,512  5,638 

Software 16,708  15,227 

Test equipment 347  347 

Leasehold improvements 2,689  2,689 

27,429  24,074 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (22,513) (20,632)

Add: Assets under development 56  1,518 

Net property, plant and equipment $ 4,972  $ 4,960 

8. Long-Term Contract Work In Process

During the first quarter, we entered into a long lead material contract with Carbon Free Power Project, LLC (“CFPP LLC”). Related to this contract, the Company has
subcontracted for the purchase of certain long-lead materials in the amount of $54,600, that will be used in fabricating of the NPMs as part of the overall contract with CFPP
LLC. This first phase of the project will be completed for CFPP, LLC near the end of 2024. The subcontractor is manufacturing the long-lead materials on behalf of NuScale, and
we are considered the principal, rather than agent, under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The contract contains one performance obligation that will be
satisfied once the materials are verified as received at the fabricator’s facility. As of March 31, 2023, $14,200 has been capitalized in the Long-term contract work in process line
item on our consolidated balance sheet related to this contract.

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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9. Notes Payable

Convertible Note Payable

In September 2011, NuScale entered into Subsequent to March 31, 2023, upon meeting certain contract milestones, we have billed CFPP LLC $22,275, which will be classified as
a convertible loan agreement with Fluor in the amount of $10,281 with an original maturity date of September 30, 2013, which was extended annually. The debt was convertible
at Fluor’s option at the original issue price per unit of the Company’s next round of financing securities amounting to no less than $16,000.
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In April 2022, Fluor elected to convert all of its outstanding debt, totaling $14,181, into 8,257,560 NuScale LLC common units (which then converted into NuScale LLC Class B
units and non-economic voting shares of NuScale Corp Class B common stock in the Merger) at a price per unit of $9.91, which is equivalent to the PIPE price per unit received
in conjunction with the Transaction.

Other Notes Payable

In January, 2021, NuScale signed a Line of Credit Promissory Note with Fluor in the amount of $30,000. Fluor advanced the Company $27,200 under this agreement all of which
was repaid in June 2021. This Line of Credit Promissory Note expired at December 31, 2021. long-term Deferred revenue liability on our consolidated balance sheet.

10. 9. Employee Benefits

401(k) Plan

The Company NuScale sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) Plan with Company contributions to be made at the sole discretion of management. Under the provisions of the
401(k) Plan, the Company matches the employees’ contributions for the first 3% of compensation and matches 50% of the employees’ contributions for the next 2% of
compensation. The expense recorded for the 401(k) Plan was $592$751 and $479$672 for the three months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and 2021, respectively,
and $1,759 and $1,392 for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, 2022, respectively.

11. 10. Income Taxes

NuScale LLC was historically, and remains a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes with each partner being separately taxed on its share of taxable income or loss.
NuScale Corp is subject to U.S. federal income taxes, in addition to state and local income taxes, with respect to its distributive share of any net taxable income or loss and any
related tax credits of NuScale LLC.

The effective tax rate was 0% for the three months ended September 30, 2022 and the period from May 2, 2022 through September 30, 2022March 31, 2023. The effective
income tax rate for the three months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 differed significantly from the statutory rates, primarily due to the losses allocated to NCI and
the recognition of a valuation allowance as a result of the Company’s new tax structure following the Transaction.

IncomeThere was no income tax expense recorded in during the three months ended September 30, 2022 and for the period from May 2, 2022 through September 30, 2022
represents amounts owed to state authorities due to the change in corporate taxpayer status following the Transaction.March 31, 2023.

The Company has assessed the realizability of the net deferred tax assets and in that analysis has considered the relevant positive and negative evidence available to
determine whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against the
deferred tax assets at NuScale Corp as of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, which will be maintained until there is sufficient evidence to support the reversal of all or some
portion of these allowances.

NuScale Power Corporation
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The Company’s income tax filings will be subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. The Company will monitor the status of U.S. federal, state and local income tax returns
that may be subject to audit in future periods. No U.S. federal, state and local income tax returns are currently under examination by the respective taxing authorities.

In August 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act, or IRA, was enacted which includes the following key summary provisions: (i) a 15% Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax, or CAMT,
that allows an offset of up to 75% with existing tax credit carryforwards, (ii) excise tax applicable to certain stock repurchases including ordinary buy backs and open market
repurchases, (iii) extension and expansion of clean energy credits and incentives, and (iv) indefinite carryover of the CAMT. This legislation also provides transferability
opportunities for certain newly generated credits as well as a direct pay option. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, the enactment of the
IRA did not result in any material adjustment to our income tax provision.

12. 11. Equity-Based Compensation

Options to purchase common units of NuScale LLC under the Fourth Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan of NuScale LLC (the “Legacy Plan”) were granted, before
completion of the Transaction, at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the NuScale LLC’s common units at the date of grant. In connection with the Transaction, all
outstanding options to purchase NuScale LLC common units converted into options to purchase 14,742,933 shares of NuScale Corp Class A common stock. Shares underlying
those options, and an additional 17,760,961 shares of Class A common stock issuable under the Company’s 2022 long-term incentive plan, were registered on a registration
statement on Form S-8, filed with the SEC on July 5, 2022. Except with respect to equity awards outstanding as of the Transaction, the Legacy Plan terminated on May 2, 2022,
and no further equity awards will be made, or have been made since, under the Legacy Plan.

In July 2022, under the Company’s 2022 long-term incentive plan, the Board approved 2,091,282 employee time-based RSU awards that vest one-third annually starting in May
2023 for a period of three years. In addition, 39,215 and 53,920 time-based RSU awards were approved for certain members of the Board of Directors, that vest quarterly over
one and three years, respectively. The employee and Board time-based RSU awards had an aggregate fair value of $22,373 and $950, respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity relating to the Legacy Plan of NuScale LLC (historical NuScale LLC units adjusted using the exchange ratio):
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Share Options

Number of


Shares

Weighted Average


Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2021 15,393,670  $ 3.64 

Granted 208,013  9.53 

Exercised (2,455,609) 1.22 

Forfeited (57,668) 6.80 

Expired (116,578) 3.24 

Outstanding at September 30, 2022 12,971,828  3.87 

Exercisable at September 30, 2022 11,251,135  3.41 

The total compensation expense recognized for common share options and time-based RSU awards during the three months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and
20212022 was $5,075$3,637 and $1,097, respectively, and $7,207 and $5,285 for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, $1,021, respectively. This includes G&A
expense of $3,017$1,493 and other expense of $2,058$2,144 for the three months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and $528$444 of G&A expense and $569$577 in
other expense for the three months ended September 30, 2021March 31, 2022. The nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021 include G&A expense of $3,860 and
$2,707, respectively, and other expense of $3,347 and $2,578, respectively.

The Company measuresEffective January 1, 2023, the fair valueshare pool was automatically increased by 8,972,128, which is the number of each unit or share option grant
at shares of Class A common stock equal to four percent (4%) of the dateaggregate number of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average grant
date fair valueshares of optionsClass A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding on December 31, 2022, excluding any such outstanding shares of Class A
common stock that were granted duringunder the nine months ended 2022 long-term incentive plan and remain unvested and subject to forfeiture as of December 31, 2022.

NuScale Power Corporation
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September 30, 2022 was $6.29. Stock Options

The following assumptions were used in determiningtable summarizes the activity of the Company’s common stock options as of and for the three months ended March 31,
2023:

Share Options
Number of


Shares
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 12,224,783  $ 4.09 

Granted —  — 

Exercised (693,734) 2.30 

Forfeited (80,674) 6.43 

Expired (2,435) 5.54 

Outstanding at March 31, 2023 11,447,940  4.18 

Exercisable at March 31, 2023 10,379,278  3.90 

The Company measures the fair value of options granted duringeach share option grant at the ninedate of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Time-based RSUs

During the three months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, the Board approved 1,835,016 employee RSU awards that vest one-third annually starting in February 2024
for a period of three years. The following table summarizes the activity of the Company’s time-based RSUs as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2023:

Number of RSUs

Weighted Average

Time-based RSUs Grant-Date Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 2,140,651  $ 10.71 

Granted 1,835,016  10.35 

Vested (14,300) 10.20 

Forfeited/Expired (50,607) 11.12 

Outstanding at March 31, 2023 3,910,760  $ 10.54 
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Risk-free interest rate 1.44 %

Expected dividend yield NA

Expected option life 6.25 years

Expected price volatility 73.98 %

Common Unit Appreciation Rights

In April 2013, the Company granted its Chief Executive Officer 1,000,000 NuScale LLC common unit appreciation rights (“UARs”). The UARs vested one-third each year on the
anniversary of the grant date. Upon exercise of a UAR, the holder would receive common units equal to the excess of the fair value of the common units over the strike price of
$0.11 at the grant date multiplied by the number of rights exercised and divided by the fair value of the common unit upon exercise.

In February 2022, the NuScale LLC Board of Managers approved a $1,540 cash payment (paid during the three months ended June 30, 2022) in lieu of equity issuance related to
the UARs, which triggered recognition of $1,490 of equity-based compensation expense, included in G&A.&A, during the three months ended March 31, 2022.

13. 12. Related Party Transactions

From time to time, the Company enters into strategic agreements with Fluor, whereby Fluor or NuScale perform services for one another. For the three months ended
September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and 2021, 2022, NuScale incurred expenses of $8,710$8,726 and $5,035, respectively, while for the nine months ended September 30, 2022
and 2021, NuScale incurred expenses of $17,882 and $10,531, $3,601, respectively. As of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2021December 31, 2022, NuScale
owes Fluor, as accounts payable and accrued expenses on the condensed consolidated balance sheet, amounts totaling $8,124$9,162 and $3,731, $7,694, respectively. For

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, NuScale earned revenue of $4,014 and $1,561, respectively. As of March 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, Fluor owes NuScale
$6,101 and $1,508, respectively, amounts which are included in accounts and other receivables on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

For the three months ended September 30, 2022, NuScale earned revenueMarch 31, 2023 Fluor accounted for 72.9% of $2,807, while recognizing no revenue during the same
period in 2021, and for the nine months ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, NuScale earned $6,324 and $695, respectively. total revenue.

14. 13. Commitments and Contingencies

In the regular course of business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to the normal course of business. Additionally, we arethe
Company is involved in various legal proceedings and claims relating to the Transaction with Spring Valley. These legal proceedings relate to the level of disclosure of matters
prior to the Transaction, which the Company believes were timely addressed well before the Transaction. The Company does not believe that any of the claims are material to
the Company. Management does not believe that resolution of any of these matters will materially affect the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

On September 19, 2022, thirteen purported members of NuScale LLC filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Oregon against NuScale LLC, Fluor Enterprises, Japan
NuScale Innovation, Inc., and Sargent & Lundy Holdings, LLC. The plaintiffs purport to represent a class of individuals who held common units or options to purchase common
units in NuScale LLC and seek declaratory relief and damages based on breach of contract and other common law claims. The claims are based on amendments to the
operating agreement of NuScale LLC in connection with the Merger between NuScale LLC and Spring Valley Acquisition Corp. Plaintiffs claim, among other things, that such
amendments breached NuScale LLC’s 5th Amended and Restated Operating Agreement and required the consent of holders of common units in NuScale LLC voting as a
separate class. NuScale LLC’s responseLLC filed a motion to dismiss the complaint is currently scheduled to beon November 21, 2022. Plaintiffs filed a response on November
21, 2022January 17, 2023, and NuScale LLC filed a reply on February 14, 2023. While no assurance can be given as to the ultimate outcome of this matter, we do the Company
does not believe it is probable that a loss will be incurred and we havethe Company has not recorded any liability as a result of these actions.

In conjunction with DOE Office of Nuclear Energy Award DE-NE0008935 with Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems’ (“UAMPS”) wholly owned subsidiary, Carbon Free Power
Project CFPP LLC, (“CFPP LLC”), wethe Company entered into a DCRA, pursuant to which we are it is developing the NRC license application and performing other site licensing
and development activities. Under the DCRA, wethe Company may be obligated to refund to UAMPS a percentage of its net

NuScale Power Corporation

Notes to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except shares and per share amounts)

development costs up to a specified cap, which varies based on the stage of project development, if certain performance criteria are not met. TheAs of March 7, 2023, when the
Company entered into Amendment 3 of the DCRA and the Long Lead Material Reimbursement Agreement with CFPP LLC, the maximum reimbursement based on the current
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stage of project development is $57,000.was $81,000. As of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 the net development costs incurred by UAMPS totaled $15,627.$29,805.

Under this agreement, the DCRA, the Company is required to have credit support to fund the amount of its potential reimbursement of these net development costs. TheA
stipulation of obtaining the letter of credit requires is for the Company maintain a deposit in a demand account to segregate funds from the operating bank accounts as
collateral for the letter of a minimum 105% of the aggregate amount available to be drawn under all letters of credit outstanding.credit. This account is included identified as
Restricted restricted cash in the amount of $18,900, $34,182, on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet and acts as collateral for the $18,000$33,500 letter of
credit covering the total net development costs outstanding at September 30, 2022March 31, 2023. ThisOn April 17, 2023, this letter of credit was increased to $44,200.

In December 2022, NuScale and Fluor provided CFPP LLC with the results of an economic competitiveness test (“ECT”) comparing the calculated levelized cost of electricity
(“LCOE”) for the Carbon Free Power Project (the “CFPP”) with the price target of $58.00/MWh as provided for under the amended DCRA. The LCOE exceeded the price target,
meaning there was an ECT Failure. As a result of the ECT Failure UAMPS Members participating in the CFPP were given the opportunity to exit the Project. CFPP LLC had until
March 1, 2023 to deliver notice that it intended to terminate its participation in the Project. If CFPP LLC had issued notice that it intended to terminate its participation in the
Project by March 1, 2023, the Company could have been liable to pay CFPP LLC approximately $29,805 and the Company would then have had the option to take over the
Project assets and continue to develop the CFPP. However, on March 1, 2023, UAMPS notified NuScale confirming that sufficient Project Participants have opted to continue
with CFPP development notwithstanding the ECT failure. The next ECT is required scheduled to be updated on a quarterly basis using an estimated net development costs
schedule agreed to by both parties.run in conjunction with the submission of the Class 2 Project Cost Estimate.

We are currently in compliance, and expect to remain in compliance, with all related performance criteria.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of NuScale Power Corporation (“NuScale Corp”) should be read together with our NuScale LLC 2022
Annual Report on Form 10-K and with the financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 and NuScale Corp unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial statements as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2022 and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements of NuScale LLC as of and
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, together with related notes thereto. included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This discussion may contain forward-looking
statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those projected in these forward-looking statements as a result
of various factors. Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this section to “NuScale,” “us,” “our” or “we” refer to NuScale Power, LLC (“NuScale LLC”) prior to the Transaction, and
to NuScale Power Corporation (“NuScale Corp”) following the consummation of the Transaction.

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act that are not historical facts
and involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expected and projected. All statements, other than statements of historical fact
included in this Form 10-Q, including, without limitation, statements in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” regarding our
financial position and business strategy and the expectations, beliefs, intentions, plans and objectives of management for future operations, are forward-looking statements.
Words such as “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “continue,” “could,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,” “project,” “will,” “would,” “estimate,” “seek” and
variations and similar words and expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not
forward-looking. Forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report may include, for example, statements about:

• our financial and business performance, including financial projections and business metrics;
• the ability to maintain the listing of the shares of Class A common stock on the NYSE, and the potential liquidity and trading of such securities;
• the ability to obtain regulatory approvals to deploy our SMRs in the United States and abroad;
• changes in applicable laws or regulations;
• our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors;
• forecasts regarding end-customer adoption rates and demand for our products in markets that are new and rapidly evolving;
• macroeconomic conditions;
• availability of a limited number of suppliers for our products and services;
• increases in costs, disruption of supply, or shortage of materials;
• our dependence on a small number of customers, and failure to add new customers or expand sales to existing customers;
• substantial regulations, which are evolving, and unfavorable changes or failure by us to comply with these regulations;
• product liability claims, which could harm our financial condition and liquidity if we are not able to successfully defend or insure against such claims;
• changes to United States trade policies, including new tariffs or the renegotiation or termination of existing trade agreements or treaties;
• various environmental and safety laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs on us and negatively impact the ability of our suppliers to operate their

manufacturing facilities and of our customers to own and operate our plants;
• outages and disruptions of our services if we fail to maintain adequate security and supporting infrastructure as we scale our information technology systems;
• availability of additional capital to support business growth;
• failure to protect our intellectual property;
• intellectual property rights claims by third parties, which could be costly to defend, related significant damages and resulting limits on our ability to use certain

technologies;
• developments and projections relating to our competitors and industry;
• our anticipated growth rates and market opportunities;
• the period over which we anticipate our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our operating expenses and capital expenditure requirements;
• the potential for our business development efforts to maximize the potential value of our portfolio;
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• our estimates regarding expenses, future revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing;
• the inability to develop and maintain effective internal controls;

• failure to maintain adequate operational and financial resources or raise additional capital or generate sufficient cash flows;
• cyber-attacks and security vulnerabilities; and
• COVID-19 and other pandemics, including their effect on the foregoing.

Such forward-looking statements relate to future events or future performance, but reflect management’s current beliefs, based on information currently available. Many factors
could cause actual events, performance or results to differ materially from the events, performance and results discussed in the forward-looking statements, and there can be no
assurance that future developments affecting us will be those we have anticipated. For information identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially
from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements, please refer to “Risk Factors” in this Quarterly Report. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or
should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in these forward-looking statements. Some of these risks and
uncertainties may in the future be amplified by the COVID-19 outbreak and there may be additional risks that we currently consider immaterial, or which are unknown. It is not
possible to predict or identify all such risks. Except as expressly required by applicable securities law, we disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. No person should take any statement regarding past trends or activities as a representation that
the trends or activities will continue in the future.

Overview

Our mission is to provide scalable advanced nuclear technology for the production ofto produce electricity, heat and clean water to improve the quality of life for people around
the world. We are changing the power that changes the world by creating an energy source that is smarter, cleaner, safer and cost competitive.

Our small modular reactor (“SMR”), known as NuScale Power Module (“NPM”), provides a scalable power plant solution incorporating enhanced safety, improved affordability and
extended flexibility for diverse electrical and process heat applications. Our scalable design provides carbon-free energy and at a reduced cost when compared with gigawatt-sized
nuclear facilities.

Since our founding in 2007, we have made significant progress towards commercializing the first SMR in the United States. In 2017, we submitted our Design Certification
Application (“DCA”) to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”). On August 28, 2020, the NRC issued its Final Safety Evaluation Report, representing the NRC’s completion of
its technical review. On September 11, 2020 the NRC issued its Standard Design Approval (“SDA”) of our NPM and scalable plant design. With this phase of NuScale’s DCA now
complete, customers may proceed with plans to develop NuScale power plants with the understanding that the NRC has approved the safety aspects of the NPM and plant design.
We expect our operating losses and negative operating cash flow to grow until the commercialization of the NPM. On July 29, 2022January 19, 2023, the NRC directed published in
the staff to issueFederal Register a final rule that certifies NuScale’s SMR design for use in the United States. The certification’sStates, which became effective date is 30 days after
NRC publishes the rule in the Federal Register.publication.

Merger Transaction with Spring Valley
On May 2, 2022, we completed a merger (the “Merger”) with
In December 2021, NuScale LLC pursuant to theentered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated December 13, 2021 (as amended, modified, supplemented or waived, the(the
“Merger Agreement”), between NuScale Corp (formerly  with Spring Valley Acquisition Corp. (“Spring Valley”), NuScale LLC and Spring Valley Merger Sub, LLC (“Merger Sub”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of NuScale Corp (“Merger Sub”).Spring Valley. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub would be merged with and into NuScale LLC (the “Merger”),
with NuScale LLC surviving the Merger (the “Surviving Company”), Spring Valley Acquisition Corp being renamed NuScale Power Corporation, Corp, and NuScale LLC continuing to
be held as a wholly controlled subsidiary of NuScale Power Corporation in an “Up-C” structure. On May 2, 2022, the transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement including
theand Merger (collectively the “Transaction”), was completed.

The Transaction was accounted for is shown as a reverse recapitalization as provided under GAAP. NuScale Corp Spring Valley is the acquired company, with NuScale LLC treated as
the acquirer. This determination reflects Legacy NuScale Equityholders holding a majority of the voting power of NuScale Corp, NuScale LLC’s pre-merger operations being the
majority post-merger operations of NuScale Corp, and NuScale LLC’s management team retaining similar roles at NuScale Corp. Accordingly, although NuScale Corp Spring Valley is
the legal parent company, GAAP dictates that the financial statements of NuScale Corp will represent a continuation of NuScale LLC’s operations, with the Transaction being
treated as though NuScale LLC issued ownership interests for NuScale Corp, Spring Valley, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of NuScale LLC are stated at historical
cost, with no incremental goodwill or other intangible assets recorded for the effects of the MergerTransaction with Spring Valley.

The following table provides the historical cost of the assets and liabilities assumed as a result of the transaction:Transaction:

Cash $ 341,462 

Warrant liabilities (47,532)

   Total net assets $ 293,930 

Key Factors Affecting Our Prospects and Future Results

We believe that our performance and future success depend on a number of factors that present significant opportunities for us but also pose risks and challenges, including
competition from carbon-based and other non-carbon-based energy generators, the risk of perceived safety issues and their consequences for our reputation and the other
factors discussed under the section titled “Risk Factors” in Part II, 1A of this filing. We believe the factors described below are key to our success.
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Commencing and Expanding Commercial Launch Operations

In September 2020, we became the first and only company to receive NRC SDA for an SMR. We believe our commercialization activities are being completed at a pace that can
support delivery of modules to a client site as early as 2027. We have an agreement in place with UAMPS to deploy a NuScale 6-module power plant at the DOE’s Idaho National
Laboratory as part of UAMPS’ Carbon Free Power Project (“CFPP”). Commercial operation of the first NPM is slated for 2029. In November 2021, we signed a teaming agreement
with S.N. Nuclearelectrica S.A., an entity that operates under the authority of the Romanian Ministry of Energy, to advance the deployment of our NPMs to Romania. Under the
teaming agreement, we will evaluate activities associated with the planning, siting and licensing of our NuScale power plant technology at a site that is the location of an existing
coal-fueled electricity plant. We expect the site in Romania to use six modules and to be commercially operable by 2028.

We have over 100 potential target customers, including, in addition to UAMPS, ten customers across seven countries that we consider highly interested customers who are
considering an NPM power plant deployment in the late 2020s or early 2030s. We believe the long lead-time involved with siting an SMR, the number of customers in our pipeline
and the work being performed by these potential customers involving a NuScale deployment project bode well for our potential future success.

Regulatory Approvals

We expect to submit an application to the NRC for our latest power enhanced design. If approved, the licensed output of our NPM will be raised from 50 MWe to 77 MWe. Approval
of the design, which could come in 2024, would increase the cost-competitiveness of our NPM, and we consider obtaining such approval a critical milestone.

Other factors that we believe are critical to our future success are country-level approvals of our NPM design. We also believe site-approvals by our customers to be key to
facilitating broader adoption of our products and services. Obtaining these approvals before others is critical in maintaining our competitive advantage.

Successful Implementation of the First NPM Power Plant

A critical step in our success will be the successful construction and operation of the first power plant using our NPM. We expect that the first NPM for the UAMPS facility could be
operational as early as 2029 with the remaining five modules achieving commercial operation in 2030.

Results of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share

amounts) Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) (in thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,

2022 2021 2022 2021 2023 2022

Revenue Revenue $ 3,172  $ 297  $ 8,366  $ 1,333  Revenue $ 5,505  $ 2,445 

Cost of sales Cost of sales (1,749) (156) (4,693) (807) Cost of sales (3,416) (1,205)

Gross margin Gross margin 1,423  141  3,673  526  Gross margin 2,089  1,240 

Research and
development
expenses

Research and
development
expenses 34,317  26,370  87,325  66,021 

Research and
development
expenses 25,715  24,380 

General and
administrative
expenses

General and
administrative
expenses 18,473  13,686  44,436  32,524 

General and
administrative
expenses 14,695  10,520 

Other expenses Other expenses 14,731  5,921  34,524  25,222  Other expenses 17,151  10,188 

Loss from
operations

Loss from
operations (66,098) (45,836) (162,612) (123,241)

Loss from
operations (55,472) (43,848)

Department of Energy cost share 18,377  18,839  64,016  50,408 

Increase (decrease) in fair value of
warrant liabilities (2,833) —  3,287  — 

Other cost share (interest expense) 924  (104) 926  (1,613)

Sponsored cost
share

Sponsored cost
share 17,873  20,577 

Decrease
(increase) in fair
value of warrant
liabilities

Decrease
(increase) in fair
value of warrant
liabilities (1,108) — 

Interest income
(expense)

Interest income
(expense) 3,097  (102)

Loss before
income taxes

Loss before
income taxes $ (49,630) $ (27,101) $ (94,383) $ (74,446)

Loss before
income taxes $ (35,610) $ (23,373)
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Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and 20212022

Changes in Presentation

Prior year amounts totaling $115, previously identified as Other cost share (interest expense) but currently described as Interest income (expense), have been reclassified to
Sponsored other cost share to conform to the current year presentation on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue

The increase in revenue was attributable to activities in support of the EPCDA for CFPP, as well as nuclear technologies consulting services.

Research and Development

R&D expenses increased due to higher professional fees associated with the standard plant design work of $7.6 million and compensation costs of $0.4 million as a result of
increased headcount as we continue to expand our licensing efforts.

General and Administrative

G&A expenses increased as a result of $3.1 million related to $1.2 million in accounting, advertising and marketing expenses, $4.0$0.8 million of higher insurance costs, and $1.1
million in equity-based compensation partially offset by a decrease of $3.4 million and $0.8 million in compensation costs.

Other

Other expenses increased as a result of $6.8 million by $4.0 million in compensation costs associated with a completion bonus, equity-based compensation of $1.4 million resulting
from department restructuring and increased software and hardware expenses of $0.5 million.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Changes in Presentation

Prior year amounts totaling $1,055 have been reclassified out of general and administrative expensesadding operational supervisory staff to other expenses to conform to the
current year presentation on the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue

The increase in revenue was attributable to activities in support of the EPCDA for CFPP, as well as nuclear technologies consulting services.

Research and Development

R&D expenses increased due to $17.7 million of professional fees associated with the standard plant design work and compensation costs of $3.3 million as a result of increased
headcount as we continue to expand our licensing efforts.

General and Administrative

G&A expenses increased as a result of $3.3 million in compensation costs due to an increase in headcount, $4.5 million in insurance costs, $2.7 million commercialization, $1.5 million
in equity-based compensation and $1.4 million in marketingsoftware and advertising costs as we continue to build brand recognition across the globe.

Otherhardware expenses.

Other expenses increased as a result of $7.1 million of higher compensation costs associated with a completion bonus, equity-based compensation of $0.7 million and higher software,
hardware and general expenses of $1.3 million.

Department of Energy Cost ShareSponsored cost share

The DOE cost share increasedecreased by $8.1 million as a result of $13.6 million reflectsdecreased funding in the incurrence of higher qualifying costs.current year combined with
a lower cost share percentage during the 2023 fiscal year. This was partially offset be new cost share agreements with various entities.

Interest income (expense)

The increase is due to $3.1 million of interest income earned on certificates of deposit.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
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Liquidity

We measure liquidity in terms of our ability to fund the cash requirements of our R&D activities and our near-term business operations, including our contractual obligations and
other commitments. Our current liquidity needs primarily involve R&D activities for the ongoing development of the NPM and associated plant design.

We had $268.6 million $218.2 million in cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, compared to $77.1 million $217.7 million as of December 31, 2021, as well
as $50.0 million in short-term investments that will mature in the first quarter of 2023.December 31, 2022. We had no debt as of September 30, 2022, compared to $14.0 million as of
December 31, 2021, (which was converted into equity in conjunction with the Transaction). The Transaction resulted in NuScale receiving cash in the amount of $341.5 million,
consisting of $235.0 million in PIPE funding and $145.5 million in cash in trust, partially offset by transaction costs of $39.1 million.on either date.

Since NuScale’s inception, we have incurred significant operating losses; we have had negative operating cash flow during the three and nine months ended September 30,
2022March 31, 2023 and 2021;2022; and we have an accumulated deficit of $169.5 million $193.1 million as of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023. Management expects that
operating losses and negative cash flows may increase because of additional costs and expenses related to the development of technology and the development of market and
strategic relationships with other companies.

To date, we have not generated any material revenue. We do not expect to generate any meaningful revenue unless and until we are able to commercialize our NPM and related
services. We expect our costs to increase in connection with the advancement of our products and services toward commercialization. In addition, with the completion of the
Transaction, we expect to incur additional costs associated with operating as a public company. While we believe that the proceeds of the Transaction will be sufficient to reach
commercialization of our NPM, certain costs are not reasonably estimable at this time, and we may require additional funding and our projections anticipate certain customer-
sourced income that is not assured.assured and DOE funds that are granted under the cooperative agreement secured by the Company are subject to Congressional
appropriations. Further, the debt ceiling and appropriations discussions currently taking place within Congress could have a material impact on the Company’s cash projections.

We believe that based on our current level of operating expenses and currently available cash resources, we will have sufficient funds available to cover R&D activities and
operating cash needs for several years. the next twelve months. However, considering that we have not yet completed the development of a commercial product and have no
meaningful revenue to date, we may require additional funds in future years. Our ability to raise funds through equity offerings may be limited by the significant number of shares
that may be publicly sold, including the shares registered for resale under the Registration Statement registration statement on Form S-1 that was declared effective by the SEC on
June 30, 2022. Such sales may negatively affect the market price of our shares of Class A common stock. In particular, a large sale by Fluor, our majority shareholder, could
significantly affect our stock price. We believe the likelihood that Warrant holders will exercise their Warrants, and therefore the amount of cash proceeds that we would receive
from such exercises, depends on the trading price of our shares of Class A common stock, which from time to time, has exceeded the $11.50 Warrant exercise price, before the
Warrants expire. In certain circumstances, the Warrants can be exercised on a cashless basis. Our ability to fund R&D activities and our operating cash needs for severalmultiple
years does not depend on the proceeds we may receive as the result of exercises of Warrants.
Summary Statement

Comparison of Cash Flows for the NineThree Months Ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 and 20212022

The following table sets forth the primary sources and uses of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash for the periods presented below:

Nine Months Ended September 30,

(in thousands) 2022 2021

Net cash used in operating activities $ (104,728) (73,389)

Net cash used in investing activities (51,744) (1,573)

Net cash provided by financing activities 366,886  172,715 

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (A) $ 210,414  $ 97,753 

(A) Includes $18,900 in restricted cash

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2023 2022

Net cash used in operating activities $ (43,137) (33,151)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 49,649  (1,187)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,617  (73)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (A) $ 8,129  $ (34,411)

(A) Includes $34,182 in restricted cash

Cash Flows used in Operating Activities

Our operating cash flow decreased during the ninethree months ended September 30, 2022 primarily asMarch 31, 2023 due to a result build up of the purchase of short-term
investments, higher cash payments for compensation costsreceivables associated with our cost share and higher prepaids.commercial work.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
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In accordance with The $50.0 million of cash provided by investing activities resulted from the maturity, and sale, of our investment policy, we purchased $50.0 million in 6 month
certificates of deposit during the ninethree months ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023. We had no such purchases during the same period in 2021.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2022, net cash provided by financing activities primarily consisted of proceeds from the Transaction and the exercise of warrants and
options, while the nine months ended September 30, 2021 included $192.5 million in capital raised through sales of NuScale LLC preferred units and $27.2 million of proceeds from
debt issuance, partially offset by the repayment of $47.5 million of debt to Fluor, our majority shareholder.

Commitments and Contractual Obligations

As of September 30, 2022, the Company had no material commitments and contractual obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Capital Resources

In conjunction with DOE Office of Nuclear Energy Award DE-NE0008935 with Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems’ (“UAMPS”) wholly owned subsidiary, Carbon Free Power
Project, LLC (“CFPP LLC”), we entered into a DCRA, Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement (“DCRA”), pursuant to which we are developing the NRC license application and
performing other site licensing and development activities. Under the DCRA, we may be obligated to refund to UAMPS a percentage of its net development costs up to a specified
cap, which varies based on the stage of project development, if certain performance criteria are not met. TheAs of March 7, 2023, when we entered into Amendment 3 of the DCRA
and the Long Lead Material Reimbursement Agreement with CFPP LLC, the maximum reimbursement based on the current stage of project development is $57,000.$81.0 million.
As of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 the net development costs incurred by UAMPS totaled $15,627.$29.8 million.

Under this agreement, the Company is required to have credit support to fund the amount of itsour potential reimbursement of these net development costs. TheThis letter of
credit is updated quarterly based on an agreed upon forecasted estimate of net development costs. A stipulation of attaining the letter of credit requires the Company maintain a
deposit in a demand account segregate funds from the operating bank accounts as collateral for said letter of a minimum 105% of the aggregate amount available to be drawn
under all letters of credit outstanding.credit. This account is included identified as Restricted restricted cash in the amount of $18,900, $34.2 million, on the accompanying
condensed consolidated balance sheet and acts as collateral for the $18,000$33.5 million letter of credit covering the total net development costs outstanding at September 30,
2022March 31, 2023. This letter of credit is required to be updated on a quarterly basis using an estimated net development costs schedule agreed to by both parties.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. Preparation of the financial statements requires our management to make a number of judgments,
estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We consider an accounting
judgment, estimate or assumption to be critical when (1) the estimate or assumption is complex in nature or requires a high degree of judgment and (2) the use of different
judgments, estimates and assumptions could have a material impact on our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 3 within our “Notes to
the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements”. Additional information about our critical accounting policies follows:

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable includes reimbursement requests outstanding from DOE awards and are recognized as eligible costs are incurred. Such treatment creates symmetry with our
incurrence of qualifying costs. Accounts receivable are presented net of related deferred DOE cost share liabilities that have the right of offset. We do assess the probability of
collection from the DOE in establishing the fair value of recorded amounts.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize fixed price contract revenue with multiple performance obligations as each obligation is completed. We allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
using an estimate of the stand-alone selling price of each distinct service in the contract. Revenue recognized on contracts that have not been billed to customers is classified as a
current asset under Accounts Receivable on the Balance Sheet. Amounts billed to clients in excess of revenue recognized are classified as a current liability under Deferred Revenue.

We recognize timeIn December 2022, NuScale and material contracts revenue over time, matching continuous transferFluor provided CFPP LLC with a Class 3 Project Cost
Estimate (“PCE”). As provided for in the DCRA (as amended), NuScale ran an economic competitiveness test (“ECT”) comparing the PCE with a price target of control to the
customer. We account $58.00/MWh for these contracts as a single performance obligation and recognize revenue using the percentage-of-completion (“POC”) method, based on
contract cost incurred to date compared to total estimated contract cost. The POC method (an input method) is the most faithful depiction of our performance because it directly
measures the valuetarget COD of the services transferred to Project. The PCE exceeded the customer. Changes to total estimated contract cost or losses, if any, are recognized price
target, meaning there was an ECT failure. As a result of the ECT failure UAMPS Members participating in the period CFPP (“Project Participants”) were given the opportunity to exit
the Project. CFPP LLC had until March 1, 2023 (unless extended by mutual agreement), to deliver notice that it intended to terminate its participation in which they are determined
as assessed at the contract level. Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred unless they are expected Project. If CFPP LLC had issued notice that it intended to terminate its
participation in the Project by March 1, 2023, the Company would have been liable to pay CFPP LLC approximately $29.8 million and would have had the option to take over the
Project assets and continue to develop CFPP. However, on March 1, 2023, UAMPS notified NuScale that sufficient Project Participants have opted to continue with CFPP
development notwithstanding the ECT failure. The next ECT is scheduled to be recovered fromrun in conjunction with the client.

We exclude all taxes assessed by governmental authorities from our measurement of transaction prices that are both (i) imposed on and concurrent with a specific revenue-
producing transaction and (ii) collected from customers. Accordingly, such tax amounts are not included as a component of revenue or cost of sales.

We generally provide limited warranties for work performed under our engineering contracts. The warranty periods typically extend for a limited duration following substantial
completion of our work.

Because our SMR is designed to be sold on a modular basis, we are limited under U.S. GAAP in our ability to recognize revenue on a POC basis. Other companies with a less-
standardized approach might be able to use POC, which would have the effect of accelerating their recognition of profit ahead of us, given our use of completed contract
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accounting.

Equity-Based Compensation

Equity-based compensation is measured using a fair value-based method for all equity based awards. The cost of awarded equity instruments is recognized based on each
instrument’s grant-date fair value over the period during which the grantee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. The determination of fair value requires
significant judgment and the use of estimates, particularly with regard to Black-Scholes assumptions such as stock price volatility and expected option lives to value equity-based
compensation. Equity-based compensation is recorded as a general and administrative expense and other expense in the statements of operations.

We measure the fair value of each option grant at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. We estimate the expected term of options granted based on
historical experience and expectations. We use the treasury yield curve rates for the risk-free interest rate in the option valuation model with maturities similar to the expected
termsubmission of the options. Volatility is determined by reference to Class 2 PCE. For information regarding the actual volatility consequences of several publicly traded
companies that are similar to us in our industry sector. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future and therefore use an expected dividend yield of
zero in the option valuation model. Forfeitures are recognized as they occur. All equity-based payment awards subject to graded vesting based only on a service condition are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods.

There is substantial judgment in selecting the assumptions which we use to determine the fair value of such equity awards and other companies could use similar market inputs
and experience and arrive at different conclusions with respect to those used to calculate fair value. Using alternative assumptions could cause there to be differences in the
resulting fair value. If the fair value were to increase, the amount of expense that would result would also increase. Conversely, if the fair value were to decrease, the amount of
expense would decrease.

Emerging Growth Company Accounting Election

Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts EGCs from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies are required to
comply ECT failure, see Commercialization Risk Factors associated with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect
not Company’s obligations to take advantage of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-EGCs, and any such election to not take
advantage of the extended transition period is irrevocable. We expect to be an EGC at least through the end of 2022 and will have the benefit of the extended transition period. We
intend to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period.UAMPS.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Management believes there is no new accounting guidance issued but not yet effective that would have a material impact to the Company’s current financial statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Inflation Risk

We believe inflation has materially impacted There have been no material changes from the supply chain costs associated with all energy projects, including NuScale VOYGR™
projects, although we have not fully assessed the extent discussion of the impact.Company’s market risk in Part I, Item 7A., Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk, of the Company’s 2022 Annual Report Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of the evaluation date, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2022March 31, 2023. Accordingly, management believes that the financial statements included in this Form 10-Q
present fairly in all material respects our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the period presented.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Part II - Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In the regular course of business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings and claims incidental to the normal course of business. Additionally, we are involved in
various legal proceedings and claims relating to the Transaction. These legal proceedings relate to the level of disclosure of matters prior to the Transaction, which the Company
believes were timely addressed well before the Transaction. We do not believe that any of the claims are material to the Company. Management does not believe that resolution of
any of these matters will materially affect the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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On September 19, 2022, thirteen purported members of NuScale LLC filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the District of Oregon against NuScale LLC, Fluor Enterprises, Japan
NuScale Innovation, Inc., and Sargent & Lundy Holdings, LLC. The plaintiffs purport to represent a class of individuals who held common units or options to purchase common
units in NuScale LLC and seek declaratory relief and damages based on breach of contract and other common law claims. The claims are based on amendments to the operating
agreement of NuScale LLC in connection with the Merger between NuScale LLC and Spring Valley Acquisition Corp. Plaintiffs claim, among other things, that such amendments
breached NuScale LLC’s 5th Amended and Restated Operating Agreement and required the consent of holders of common units in NuScale LLC voting as a separate class. NuScale
LLC’s responseLLC filed a motion to dismiss the complaint is currently scheduled to beon November 21, 2022. Plaintiffs filed a response January 17, 2023, and NuScale LLC filed a
reply on November 21, 2022February 14, 2023. While no assurance can be given as to the ultimate outcome of this matter, we do not believe it is probable that a loss will be
incurred and we have not recorded any liability related to this action.

We do not consider any other claims, lawsuits, or proceedings that are currently pending against NuScale, individually or in the aggregate, to be material to our business or likely
to as a result in a material adverse effect on our future operating results, financial condition, or cash flows. From time to time, we may be subject to various claims, lawsuits, and
other legal and administrative proceedings that may arise in the ordinary course of business. Some of these claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings may range in complexity and
result in substantial uncertainty; it is possible that they may result in damages, fines, penalties, non-monetary sanctions, or relief.actions.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

WeThere have identified the following risks and uncertainties that may have abeen no material adverse effect on changes from our business, financial condition, results of
operations or reputation. The risks described below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently believe are not material may also
significantly affect our business, financial condition, results of operations or reputation. Our business could be harmed by any of these risks. In assessing these risks, you should
also refer to the financial statements and related notes contained in this report.

These risk factors are not exhaustive, and investors are encouraged to perform their own investigation with respect toas disclosed in the business, financial condition, and prospects of
NuScale Corp and our business, financial condition, and prospects. You should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition to the other information included in our public
filings, including in our prospectus filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on July 1, 2022 (the “Prospectus”) that is part of our registration statement2022 Annual Report on
Form S-1.

We may face additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known to it, or that we currently deems immaterial, which may also impair our business or financial condition. The
following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of NuScale and notes to the financial statements included in the Prospectus.

Risks Related to Our Structure and Governance

NuScale Corp is a holding company and its only material asset is its interest in NuScale LLC, and it is accordingly dependent upon distributions made by its subsidiaries to
pay taxes, make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement and pay dividends.

NuScale Corp is a holding company with no material assets other than its ownership of the NuScale LLC common units. As a result, NuScale Corp has no independent means of
generating revenue or cash flow. NuScale Corp’s ability to pay taxes, cause NuScale LLC to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, and pay dividends depends on the
financial results and cash flows of NuScale LLC and the distributions it receives (directly or indirectly) from NuScale LLC. Deterioration in the financial condition, earnings or cash
flow of NuScale LLC for any reason could limit or impair its ability to pay such distributions. Additionally, to the extent that NuScale Corp needs funds and NuScale LLC is restricted
from making such distributions under applicable law or regulation or under the terms of any financing arrangements, or NuScale LLC is otherwise unable to provide such funds, it
could materially adversely affect NuScale Corp’s liquidity and financial condition.

NuScale LLC is treated as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes and, as such, generally will not be subject to any entity-level United States federal income tax.
Instead, taxable income will be allocated to holders of NuScale

10-K.
LLC common units. Accordingly, NuScale Corp will be required to pay income taxes on its allocable share of any net taxable income from NuScale LLC. Under the terms of the Sixth
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of NuScale LLC (the “A&R NuScale LLC Agreement”), NuScale LLC is obligated to make tax distributions to holders of
the NuScale LLC common units calculated at certain assumed tax rates. In addition to income taxes, NuScale Corp is also expected to incur expenses related to its operations,
including payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which could be significant, and some of which will be reimbursed by NuScale LLC (excluding payment
obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement). NuScale Corp intends to cause NuScale LLC to make ordinary distributions and tax distributions to holders of the NuScale LLC
Class A Units and NuScale LLC Class B Units on a pro rata basis in amounts sufficient to cover all applicable taxes, relevant operating expenses, payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement and dividends, if any, declared by NuScale Corp. However, as discussed above, NuScale LLC’s ability to make such distributions may be subject to various limitations
and restrictions, including, but not limited to, retention of amounts necessary to satisfy the obligations of NuScale LLC and restrictions on distributions that would violate any
applicable restrictions contained in NuScale LLC’s debt agreements, if any, or any applicable law or that would have the effect of rendering NuScale LLC insolvent. To the extent that
NuScale Corp is unable to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement for any reason, such payments will be deferred and will accrue interest until paid; provided,
however, that nonpayment for a specified period may constitute a breach of a material obligation under the Tax Receivable Agreement and therefore accelerate payments under
the Tax Receivable Agreement, which could be substantial.

Additionally, although NuScale LLC generally will not be subject to any entity-level United States federal income tax, it may be liable under recent United States federal tax
legislation for adjustments to prior year tax returns, absent an election to the contrary. In the event NuScale LLC’s calculations of taxable income are incorrect, NuScale LLC and its
members, including NuScale Corp, in later years may be subject to material liabilities pursuant to this legislation and its related guidance.

If NuScale LLC were treated as a corporation for United States federal income tax or state tax purposes, then the amount available for distribution by NuScale LLC could be
substantially reduced and the value of NuScale Corp shares could be adversely affected.
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An entity that would otherwise be classified as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes (such as NuScale LLC) may nonetheless be treated as, and taxable as, a
corporation if it is a “publicly traded partnership” unless an exception to such treatment applies. An entity that would otherwise be classified as a partnership for United States
federal income tax purposes will be treated as a “publicly traded partnership” if interests in such entity are traded on an established securities market or interests in such entity are
readily tradable on a secondary market or the substantial equivalent thereof. If NuScale LLC is determined to be treated as a “publicly traded partnership” (and taxable as a
corporation) for United States federal income tax purposes, it would be taxable on its income at the United States federal income tax rates applicable to corporations and
distributions by NuScale LLC to its partners (including NuScale Corp) could be taxable as dividends to such partners to the extent of the earnings and profits of NuScale LLC. In
addition, we would no longer have the benefit of increases in the tax basis of NuScale LLC’s assets as a result of exchanges of NuScale LLC Class B Units. Pursuant to the A&R
NuScale LLC Agreement, certain Legacy NuScale Equityholders may, from time to time, subject to the terms of the A&R NuScale LLC Agreement, exchange their interests in NuScale
LLC and have such interests redeemed by NuScale LLC for cash or shares of Class A common stock. While such exchanges could be treated as trading in the interests of NuScale
LLC for purposes of testing “publicly traded partnership” status, the A&R NuScale LLC Agreement contains restrictions on redemptions and exchanges of interests in NuScale LLC
that are intended to prevent NuScale LLC entities from being treated as a “publicly traded partnership” for United States federal income tax purposes. Such restrictions are
designed to comply with certain safe harbors provided for under applicable United States federal income tax law. NuScale Corp may also impose additional restrictions on
exchanges that it determines to be necessary or advisable so that NuScale LLC is not treated as a “publicly traded partnership” for United States federal income tax purposes.
Accordingly, while such position is not free from doubt, NuScale LLC is expected to be operated such that it is not treated as a “publicly traded partnership” taxable as a
corporation for United States federal income tax purposes and we intend to take the position that NuScale LLC is so treated as a result of exchanges of its interests pursuant to the
A&R NuScale LLC Agreement.

Pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement, NuScale Corp will be required to pay to certain Legacy NuScale Equityholders 85% of certain tax benefits, if any, that it realizes (or
in certain cases is deemed to realize) as a result of any increases in tax basis and related tax benefits resulting from any exchange of NuScale LLC Class B units for shares of
Class A common stock or cash in the future, and those payments may be substantial.

The Legacy NuScale Equityholders may in the future exchange their NuScale LLC Class B Units for shares of Class A common stock (or, upon the election of NuScale Corp, cash in an
amount equal to the net proceeds raised by selling such shares of Class A common stock in a contemporaneous underwritten offering), subject to certain restrictions. Such
transactions are expected to result in increases in NuScale Corp’s share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of NuScale LLC. These increases in tax basis may result
in increased tax depreciation and amortization deductions and therefore reduce the amount of income or franchise tax that NuScale Corp would otherwise be required to pay in
the future had such sales and exchanges never occurred.

NuScale Corp is party to the Tax Receivable Agreement with NuScale LLC, each of the TRA Holders (as defined in the Tax Receivable Agreement) party thereto and Fluor, in its
capacity as TRA Representative (as defined in the Tax Receivable Agreement). Pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement, NuScale Corp will be required to pay 85% of the net cash
tax savings from certain tax benefits, if any, that it realizes (or in certain cases is deemed to realize) as a result of any increases in tax basis and other tax benefits resulting from any
exchange by the TRA Holders of NuScale LLC Class B Units for shares of Class A common stock or cash in the future. Any such payments to TRA Holders will reduce the cash
provided by the tax savings generated from future exchanges that would otherwise have been available to NuScale Corp for other uses, including reinvestment or dividends to
Class A stockholders. Cash tax savings from the remaining 15% of the tax benefits will be retained by NuScale Corp. NuScale Corp’s obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement
accelerate upon a change in control and certain other termination events, as defined therein. These payments are the obligation of NuScale Corp and not of NuScale LLC. The
actual increase in NuScale Corp’s allocable share of NuScale LLC’s tax basis in its assets, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, will
vary depending upon a number of factors, including the timing of exchanges, the market price of the shares of Class A common stock at the time of the exchange, the extent to
which such exchanges are taxable and the amount and timing of the recognition of NuScale Corp’s income. While many of the factors that will determine the amount of payments
that NuScale Corp will make under the Tax Receivable Agreement are outside of its control, NuScale Corp expects that the payments it will make under the Tax Receivable
Agreement will be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on NuScale Corp’s financial condition. Any payments made by NuScale Corp under the Tax Receivable
Agreement will generally reduce the amount of overall cash flow that might have otherwise been available to NuScale Corp. To the extent that NuScale Corp is unable to make
timely payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement for any reason, the unpaid amounts will be deferred and will accrue interest until paid; however, nonpayment for a specified
period may constitute a material breach of a material obligation under the Tax Receivable Agreement and therefore accelerate payments due under the Tax Receivable Agreement,
as further described below. Furthermore, NuScale Corp’s future obligation to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement could make it a less attractive target for an
acquisition, particularly in the case of an acquirer that cannot use some or all of the tax benefits that may be deemed realized under the Tax Receivable Agreement. See the section
in the Prospectus entitled “Certain Relationship and Related Person Transactions - Tax Receivable Agreement.”

In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may exceed the actual tax benefits NuScale Corp realizes.

Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be based on the tax reporting positions that NuScale Corp determines, and the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or another
taxing authority may challenge all or any part of the tax basis increases, as well as other tax positions that NuScale Corp takes, and a court may sustain such a challenge. In the
event that any tax benefits initially claimed by NuScale Corp are disallowed, the Legacy NuScale Equityholders will not be required to reimburse NuScale Corp for any excess
payments that may previously have been made under the Tax Receivable Agreement, for example, due to adjustments resulting from examinations by taxing authorities. Rather,
excess payments made to such holders will be netted against any future cash payments otherwise required to be made by NuScale Corp under the Tax Receivable Agreement, if
any, after the determination of such excess. However, a challenge to any tax benefits initially claimed by NuScale Corp may not arise for a number of years following the initial time
of such payment or, even if challenged early, such excess cash payment may be greater than the amount of future cash payments that NuScale Corp might otherwise be required
to make under the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement and, as a result, there might not be future cash payments against which to net. As a result, in certain circumstances
NuScale Corp could make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement in excess of NuScale Corp’s actual income tax savings, which could materially impair NuScale Corp’s
financial condition.

Moreover, the Tax Receivable Agreement provides that, in certain events, including a change of control, breach of a material obligation under the Tax Receivable Agreement, or
NuScale Corp exercise of early termination rights, NuScale Corp obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement will accelerate and NuScale Corp will be required to make a lump-
sum cash payment to the Legacy NuScale Equityholders party to the Tax Receivable Agreement equal to the present value of all forecasted future payments that would have
otherwise been made under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which lump-
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sum payment would be based on certain assumptions, including those relating to NuScale Corp future taxable income. The lump-sum payment could be substantial and could
exceed the actual tax benefits that NuScale Corp realizes subsequent to such payment because such payment would be calculated assuming, among other things, that NuScale
Corp would have certain tax benefits available to it and that NuScale Corp would be able to use the potential tax benefits in future years.

There may be a material negative effect on NuScale Corp’s liquidity if the payments required to be made by NuScale Corp under the Tax Receivable Agreement exceed the actual
income or franchise tax savings that NuScale Corp realizes. Furthermore, NuScale Corp’s obligations to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement could also have the
effect of delaying, deferring or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business combinations or other changes of control.

NuScale Corp is a “controlled company” within the meaning of NYSE rules and, as a result, qualifies for exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements. The
stockholders of NuScale Corp do not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to such requirements.

Fluor owns a majority of the voting power of our common stock. As a result, we are a “controlled company” under the NYSE rules. As a controlled company, we are exempt from
certain corporate governance requirements, including those that would otherwise require our board of directors to have a majority of independent directors and require that we
either establish compensation and nominating and corporate governance committees, each comprised entirely of independent directors, or otherwise ensure that the
compensation of our executive officers and nominees of directors are determined or recommended to our board of directors by independent members of our board of directors.
To the extent we rely on one or more of these exemptions, our stockholders will not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of the
NYSE corporate governance requirements.

We are an emerging growth company (“EGC”) within the meaning of the Securities Act, and if we take advantage of certain exemptions from disclosure requirements available
to “emerging growth companies”, this could make our securities less attractive to investors and may make it more difficult to compare our performance with other public
companies.

We are an EGC within the meaning of the Securities Act, as modified by the JOBS Act, and we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that
are applicable to other public companies that are not EGCs including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of
holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. As a result, our
stockholders may not have access to certain information they may deem important. We could be an EGC until December 31, 2025, although circumstances could cause us to lose
that status earlier, including if the market value of common stock held by non-affiliates exceeds $700,000,000 as of any June 30 before that time, in which case we would no longer
be an EGC as of the following December 31. We cannot predict whether investors will find our securities less attractive because we rely on these exemptions. If some investors find
our securities less attractive as a result of our reliance on these exemptions, the trading prices of our securities may be lower than they otherwise would be, there may be a less
active trading market for our securities and the trading prices of our securities may be more volatile.

Further, Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts EGCs from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting standards until private companies (that is, those
that have not had a Securities Act registration statement declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act) are required to comply with the
new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that
apply to non-EGCs but any such election to opt out is irrevocable. We intend to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period.

Risks Related to NuScale’s Business and Industry

Commercialization Risk Factors

We have not yet commercialized or sold NPMs, and a number of factors could prevent, delay or hinder commercialization.

We have not yet entered into a binding contract with a customer to deliver NPMs, and there is no guarantee that we will be able to do so.

The planned initial deployment of our NPM is subject to NuScale reaching a binding agreement for its scope of supply with Utah Associated Municipal Power Systems (“UAMPS”)
and UAMPS reaching a binding engineering, procurement, and construction (“EPC”) contract with Fluor. If NuScale and Fluor do not enter into binding agreements with UAMPS,
deployment of our NPM, power plants, and ongoing services could be significantly delayed, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.
Memoranda of understanding we have entered into with other potential purchasers are contingent, and may not result in binding agreements for the purchase of our products or
services.

Competitors in China and Russia currently operate commercial SMRs, and may have advantages in marketing their SMRs to potential customers.

Competitors in Russia and China, such as Rosatom and China National Nuclear Corporation, currently operate commercial SMRs in those countries. Although their SMR designs
have not been approved by the NRC or in any jurisdiction outside of their native countries, those competitors may have a competitive advantage if they are able to obtain
approval comparable to Standard Design Approval (“SDA”), or if they can otherwise demonstrate to potential customers the value and benefits of their SMRs, particularly in
jurisdictions that have less stringent regulatory requirements. In addition, these competitors may have access to greater government or other funding to develop and
commercialize their SMRs than we do.
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We may be unable to charge UAMPS, our first customer, for some costs we have incurred and we may be required to reimburse UAMPS if we fail to achieve specified
performance measures.

We entered into a Cost Sharing Option Agreement and a Subaward Agreement in 2015 (collectively, the “CSO and Subaward Agreements”) that facilitate sharing a DOE award with
UAMPS for early siting and licensing for the Carbon Free Power Project (“CFPP”). Under those agreements, the DOE has been paying half of the costs and UAMPS and NuScale LLC
have shared the other half. We have incurred reimbursable costs of $4.1 million under the CSO and Subaward Agreements. If UAMPS determines to file a license application with
the NRC for the CFPP, UAMPS must then pay us for those costs; however, if UAMPS, or its wholly owned subsidiary, CFPP LLC, does not file a license application, we will be unable
to bill those costs to UAMPS.

In conjunction with certain agreements related to the CFPP awarded to Fluor, pursuant to which we are developing the NRC license application for the CFPP and performing other
site licensing and development activities, we entered into a Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement with CFPP LLC (the “DCRA”).

Under the DCRA, we may be obligated to refund to UAMPS a percentage of its net development costs up to a specified cap, which varies based on the stage of project
development, if (1) at specified times in the development of the CFPP, the estimated cost of electricity (based on increasingly accurate project cost estimates at various stages of
development) exceeds an agreed target cost of $58.00/megawatt-hour (subject to adjustment as specified in the DCRA), or if Fluor does not timely provide a required comparison
(which we refer to as an economic competitive test, or “ECT”), (2) the NRC does not issue design certification for the NuScale design by March 31, 2023, (3) the NRC does not issue
SDA for the NuScale design within one year after the NRC’s published date for such approval after acceptance of the SDA application, or (4) NuScale LLC materially breaches the
DCRA and the DCRA is terminated for cause. The reimbursement percentage and cap is 100% and $57 million until UAMPS or CFPP LLC submit a combined construction and
operating license for approval to the NRC (“COLA”). After the COLA is submitted, the reimbursement percentage is 20% and (a) the cap for an ECT failure before final notice to
proceed with NuScale plant construction is $60 million and (b) the cap for termination of the DCRA for cause is $120 million through delivery of a “Class 2” project cost estimate (an
estimate that is accurate within -15% to +20%) and thereafter $180 million through the final notice to proceed, which requires a “Class 1” project cost estimate (an estimate that is
accurate within -10% to +15%).

Under this agreement, the Company is required to have credit support to fund the amount of its potential reimbursement of these net development costs. The letter of credit
requires the Company maintain a deposit in a demand account of a minimum 105% of the aggregate amount available to be drawn under all letters of credit outstanding. This
account is included as Restricted cash in the amount of $18,900, on the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet and acts as collateral for the $18,000 letter of credit
covering the total net development costs outstanding at September 30, 2022. This letter of credit is required to be updated on a quarterly basis using an estimated net
development costs schedule agreed to by both parties.

Any delays in the development and manufacture of NPMs and related technology may adversely impact our business and financial condition.

We have previously experienced, and may experience in the future, delays or other complications in the design, manufacture, production and delivery of NPMs and related
technology that could prevent us from delivering NPMs in 2027 or beyond. If delays like this recur, if our remediation measures and process changes do not continue to be
successful, if we fail to find a satisfactory manufacturer or if we experience issues with planned manufacturing activities or design and safety, we could experience issues or delays in
sustaining or further increasing production and sales of NPMs.

If we encounter difficulties in scaling our production and delivery capabilities, if we fail to develop and successfully commercialize our NPMs and related technologies, if we fail to
develop such technologies before our competitors or if such technologies fail to perform as expected, are inferior to those of our competitors or are perceived as less safe than
those of our competitors, our business and financial condition could be materially and adversely impacted.

We have not yet delivered NPMs to customers, and any setbacks we may experience during our first commercial delivery planned for 2028 and other demonstration and
commercial missions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation, and could harm our reputation.

The success of our business will depend on our ability to successfully deliver NPMs to customers on-time and on-budget at guaranteed performance levels, which would tend to
establish greater confidence in our subsequent customers. There is no guarantee that our planned NPM deployments will be successful. There can be no assurance that we will not
experience operational or process failures and other problems during our first commercial deployment or any planned deployment thereafter. Any failures or setbacks, particularly
on our first commercial deployments, could harm our reputation and have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Any actual or perceived safety or reliability issues may result in significant reputational harm to our businesses, in addition to tort liability and other costs that may arise. Such
issues could result in delaying or cancelling planned deployments of NPMs, increased regulation, or other systemic consequences. Our inability to meet our safety standards or
adverse publicity affecting our reputation as a result of accidents or mechanical failures could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

We have incurred significant losses since inception, we expect to incur losses in the future, and we may not be able to achieve or maintain profitability.

We have incurred significant losses since our inception well beyond the support we have received through cost-sharing awards from the DOE. We have not yet delivered NPMs or
our flagship plants, named VOYGR, to customers, and it is difficult for us to predict our future operating results. As a result, our losses may be larger than anticipated, and we may
not achieve profitability when expected or at all; even if we do, we may not be able to maintain or increase profitability.

We expect our operating expenses to increase over the next several years as we commence deployment of NPMs, continue to refine and streamline our design and manufacturing
processes for our NPMs, make technical improvements, hire additional employees and continue research and development efforts relating to new products and technologies.
These efforts may be more costly than we expect and may not result in increased revenue, profits or growth in our business. Any failure to increase our revenue sufficiently to keep
pace with our expenses could prevent us from achieving or maintaining profitability or positive cash flow. Furthermore, if our future growth and operating performance fail to
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meet investor or analyst expectations, or if we have future negative cash flow or losses resulting from our investment in acquiring customers or expanding our operations, this
could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

The cost of electricity generated from nuclear sources may not be cost competitive with other electricity generation sources in some markets, which could materially and
adversely affect our business.

Some electricity markets experience very low power prices due to a combination of subsidized renewables and low-cost fuel sources, and NuScale may not be able to compete in
these markets unless the benefits of the carbon-free, reliable and/or resilient energy generation provided by our NPMs are sufficiently valued in the market. Given the relatively
lower electricity prices in the United States when compared to many international markets, the risk may be greater with respect to business in the United States.

The market for SMRs generating nuclear power is not yet established and may not achieve the growth potential we expect or may grow more slowly than expected.

The market for SMRs has not yet been established. Our estimates for the total addressable market are based on a number of internal and third-party estimates, including our
potential contracted revenue, the number of potential customers who have expressed interest in our NPMs, assumed prices and production costs for our NPMs, our ability to
leverage our current logistical and operational processes, and general market conditions. However, our assumptions and the data underlying our estimates may not be correct and
the conditions supporting our assumptions or estimates may change at any time, thereby reducing the predictive accuracy of these underlying factors. As a result, our estimates of
the annual total addressable market for our services, as well as the expected growth rate for the total addressable market for our services, may prove to be incorrect.

Our commercialization strategy relies heavily on our relationship with Fluor and other strategic investors and partners, who may have interests that diverge from ours and
who may not be easily replaced if our relationships terminate.

We rely heavily upon our relationship with Fluor, our majority owner, and our relationships with other of our investors and strategic partners to commercialize our NPM and our
other products and services. We granted Fluor certain rights to provide engineering, procurement and construction services in connection with NuScale’s general plant design,
project-specific designs and services typically performed by Fluor or its direct competitors. Similarly, we have entered into certain agreements with Doosan Heavy Industries and
Construction Company, Ltd., IHI Corporation, and Sarens Nuclear & Industrial Services, LLC for certain planning, engineering, manufacturing and support activities, and JGC
Holdings Corporation, an affiliate of Japan NuScale Innovation, LLC, related to the EPC and commissioning of the first NuScale plant in the United States and in other specific
geographic areas, and with Samsung C&T Corporation related to certain EPC activities.

Our strategic partners may have interests that diverge from our interests, and which may hinder our ability to negotiate sales to customers. If we lose our agreements with
strategic partners, we may need to find new contractors who may have less experience designing and building nuclear plants. This could substantially hinder our ability to expand
our production capacity and installation of VOYGR plants, and could affect our business and our prospects.

We may be unable to manage our future growth effectively, which could make it difficult to execute our business strategy.

If our operations grow as planned, we may need to expand our sales and marketing, research and development, supply and manufacturing functions, and there is no guarantee
that we will be able to scale the business and the manufacture of NPMs as planned, as there is no guarantee that we will be able to find suitable locations or partners for the
expanded manufacture and operation of our NPMs or to broaden our internal capabilities.

Any failure to effectively incorporate updates to the design, construction, and operations of NuScale plants to ensure cost competitiveness could reduce the marketability of the
NuScale design and has the potential to impact deployment schedules.

Updating the design, construction, and operations of NuScale plants will be necessary to their competitiveness and attractiveness in the market, particularly in the United States
where the price of power is generally lower than in other countries. If we are not able to achieve and maintain cost-competitiveness in the United States or elsewhere, our business
could be materially and adversely affected.

If manufacturing and construction issues are not identified prior to design finalization, long-lead procurement, and/or module fabrication, then those issues will be realized
during production, fabrication, or construction and may impact plant deployment cost and schedule.

Our NPM design will be actively managed through design reviews, prototyping, involvement of external partners and application of industry lessons, but we could still fail to
identify latent manufacturing and construction issues early enough to avoid negative effects on production, fabrication, construction or ultimate performance of our NPMs or
plants. Where these issues arise at such later stages of deployment, plant deployment could be subject to greater costs or be significantly delayed, which could materially and
adversely affect our business.

We and our customers operate in a politically sensitive environment, and the public perception of nuclear energy can affect our customers and us.

The risks associated with radioactive materials and the public perception of those risks can affect our business. Opposition by third parties can delay or prevent the construction of
new nuclear power plants and can limit the operation of nuclear reactors. Adverse public reaction to developments in the use of nuclear power could directly affect our customers
and indirectly affect our business. In the past, adverse public reaction, increased regulatory scrutiny and litigation have contributed to extended construction periods for new
nuclear reactors, sometimes delaying construction schedules by decades or more or even shutting down operations. In addition, anti-nuclear groups in Germany successfully
lobbied for the adoption of the Nuclear Exit Law in 2002, which requires the shutdown of all German nuclear power plants by the end of April 2023. Adverse public reaction could
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also lead to increased regulation or limitations on the activities of our customers, more onerous operating requirements or other conditions that could have a material adverse
impact on our customers and our business.

Accidents involving nuclear power facilities, including but not limited to events similar to the Three Mile Island, Chernobyl and Fukushima Daiichi nuclear accidents, or
terrorist acts or other high-profile events involving radioactive materials could materially and adversely affect our customers and the markets in which we operate and
increase regulatory requirements and costs that could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our future prospects are dependent upon a certain level of public support for nuclear power. Nuclear power faces strong opposition from certain competitive energy sources,
individuals and organizations. The accident that occurred at the Fukushima nuclear power plant in Japan in 2011 increased public opposition to nuclear power in some countries,
resulting in a slowdown in, or, in some cases, a complete halt to new construction of nuclear power plants, an early shut down of existing power plants or a dampening of the
favorable regulatory climate needed to introduce new nuclear technologies, all of which could negatively impact our business and prospects. As a result of the Fukushima accident,
some countries that were considering launching new domestic nuclear power programs delayed or cancelled the preparatory activities they were planning to undertake as part of
such programs. If accidents similar to the Fukushima disaster or other events, such as terrorist attacks involving nuclear facilities, occur, public opposition to nuclear power may
increase, regulatory requirements and costs could become more onerous and customer demand for our NPMs could suffer, which could materially and adversely affect our
business and operations.

Our supply base may not be able to scale to the production levels necessary to meet sales projections.

NuScale does not have manufacturing assets and relies on third party manufacturers to build our NPMs and associated equipment. Moreover, we are dependent on future
supplier capability to meet production demands attendant to our forecasts. If our supply chain cannot meet the schedule demands of the market, our projected sales revenues
could be materially impacted.

Lack of availability and cost of component raw materials may affect the manufacturing processes for plant equipment and increase our costs.

Recent global supply chain disruptions have increasingly affected both the availability and cost of raw materials, component manufacturing and deliveries. These disruptions may
result in delays in equipment deliveries and cost escalations that could adversely affect our business.

We are highly dependent on our senior management team and other highly skilled personnel, and if we are not successful in attracting or retaining highly qualified personnel,
we may not be able to successfully implement our business strategy.

Our success depends, in significant part, on the continued services of our senior management team and on our ability to attract, motivate, develop and retain a sufficient number
of other highly skilled personnel, including engineers, manufacturing and quality assurance, finance, marketing and sales personnel. Our senior management team has extensive
experience in the energy and manufacturing industries, and we believe that their depth of experience is instrumental to our continued success. The loss of any one or more
members of our senior management team, for any reason, including resignation or retirement, could impair our ability to execute our business strategy and have a material
adverse effect on our business and financial condition if we are unable to successfully attract and retain qualified and highly skilled replacement personnel.

We may require additional future funding.

To date, we have not generated any material revenue, while we have substantial overhead expenses. We do not expect to generate meaningful revenue unless and until we are
able to finalize development of and commercialize our SMR technology and related services, and we may not be able to do so on our anticipated timetable, if at all. We expect our
expenses and capital expenditures to increase in connection with our ongoing activities, including developing and advancing our SMR and other products and services, obtaining
further NRC design certifications of and SDAs for our SMR and completing our manufacturing preparation and trials. We also expect to incur additional costs associated with
operating as a public company. Certain costs are not reasonably estimable at this time and we may require additional funding and our projections anticipate certain customer-
sourced income that is not guaranteed.

We may seek to raise capital through private or public equity or debt financings or through other sources of financing. Adequate additional funding may not be available to us on
acceptable terms or at all. Our failure to raise capital as and when needed could have a negative impact on our financial condition and our ability to pursue our business strategies.
If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders will experience dilution. If we raise additional capital through debt financing, we may be subject to
covenants that restrict our operations including limitations on our ability to incur liens or additional debt, pay dividends, repurchase our securities, make certain investments, and
engage in certain merger, consolidation or asset sale transactions. Any debt financing or additional equity that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our
stockholders and members. If the needed financing is not available, or if the terms of financing are less desirable than we expect, we may be required to delay, scale back or
terminate some or all of our research and development programs.

Our funding plan relies on cost-shared funding provided through a cooperative agreement with the DOE. Significant funding has been received from the DOE under four separate
cost-share awards granted since 2013. As of September 30, 2022, the DOE has obligated $233 million to the current program. The overall DOE contribution to NuScale LLC
commercialization funding is more than $548 million. The current DOE award is a $700 million award ($350 million in government funding to be matched by $350 million in private
funding). Funding is subject to at least annual Congressional appropriations, which may not be forthcoming. The fiscal year 2023 Congressional Budget Justification prepared by the
DOE in connection with President Biden’s budget proposal to Congress, recites that approximately $40 million is requested for advanced SMR research and development, but no
amounts are specified for the CFPP or U.S. domestic SMR demonstrations. The federal budget process is complex—the budget justification and Presidential budget requests are
incomplete; Congress may appropriate different amounts than those requested; and the DOE has varying degrees of discretion to reprogram or transfer appropriated funds.
Nonetheless, to the extent Presidential budget requests or DOE budget justifications result in a shift of Congressional appropriations away from SMR funding generally or projects
we are developing specifically, those shifts could materially and adversely affect the amount of DOE funding available to us and our business.
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If we are unable to continue as a going concern, we may be forced to liquidate our assets and the values we receive for our assets in liquidation or dissolution could be significantly
lower than the values reflected in our financial statements.

As part of our arrangements with the DOE, we granted the DOE a worldwide, nonexclusive, paid-up license to our intellectual property and to manufacture our SMR technology,
and the right to sublicense those rights if specified conditions arise, including if the DOE terminates the award due to material failure to comply with the terms and conditions of
the award, or if we fail to meet our cost-sharing obligations or cease developing our SMR. As a result, if we are unable to continue as a going concern, the value of our intellectual
property, including in liquidation, may be difficult to assess.

Our ability to protect our patents and other proprietary rights may be challenged and is not guaranteed, exposing us to the possible loss of competitive advantage.

We rely upon a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret, and commercial agreements such as confidentiality agreements, assignment agreements, and license
agreements to protect the intellectual property associated with our NPMs and related technologies. These measures prevent third parties from using, practicing, selling,
manufacturing, or otherwise commercially exploiting our NPMs and related technologies, which would erode our competitive position in our market. Our success depends in large
part on our ability to obtain and enforce patent protection for our NPMs, as well as our ability to operate without infringing on or violating the proprietary rights of others. We own
and have licensed rights to patents and pending patent applications, and will continue to file patent applications claiming new technologies directed to NPMs in the United States
and in other jurisdictions based on factors such as commercial viability.

As with all industries, the patent position of power modules and nuclear energy companies generally is uncertain and is not a guaranteed right. During the patent procurement
process, a patent office may require us or our licensors to narrow the scope of the claims of our or our licensors’ pending and future patent applications. This may limit the scope of
patent protection and our or our licensors’ ability to claim patent infringement if the patent application is subsequently issued. In some cases, a patent application may not issue if
we or our licensors are unable to overcome rejections from a patent office. If a patent application does not issue, we or our licensors may lose trade secrets that are disclosed and
published in the patent application and third parties may be able to exploit such published information in our patent application. Additionally, even if we obtain a patent
registration in one jurisdiction (e.g., the United States), we cannot guarantee that we will obtain a patent registration for the same or related patent application in another
jurisdiction (e.g., China) as patent laws differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Additionally, maintaining and enforcing patent rights can involve complex legal and factual questions
and may be subject to litigation in some cases. For example, third parties may challenge the validity of our or our licensors’ patents based on prior art at a tribunal such as the
Patent Trial and Appeal Board at the United States Patent and Trademark Office and/or in a federal court. Because we cannot assure that all of the potentially relevant prior art
relating to our patents and patent applications has been found, third parties may prevail in invalidating a patent or preventing a patent application from being issued as a patent. If
we or our licensors are able to maintain valid patents or prevail in patent challenges instituted by third parties, we or our licensors may still bear the risk of third parties “designing
around” our technologies to avoid an intellectual property infringement claim.

We enjoy only limited geographical protection with respect to certain patents and may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights throughout the world.

We do not have worldwide patent rights for our NPMs and related technologies because there is no such thing as worldwide or “international patent rights.” Accordingly, we may
not be able to protect our intellectual property rights in certain jurisdictions and their legal systems. Filing, prosecuting and defending patents on our NPMs worldwide can pose
several challenges. First, procuring patent rights in multiple jurisdictions would be cost prohibitive because individual patent offices in different jurisdictions will have to examine
each patent application separately. Therefore, costs such as examination fees, translation fees, and attorney fees are considered. Once a patent is registered, we or our licensors will
also have the continued obligation of paying maintenance fees periodically to avoid patents from becoming abandoned or lapsed. Second, the breadth of claims in patents may
vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. For instance, certain patent offices may require narrower claims, resulting in patent rights that are less extensive. Further, as noted above, we
may not be able to obtain patents in some jurisdictions even if we obtain patents in other jurisdictions. Accordingly, our competitors may operate in countries where we do not
have patent protection and can freely use our technologies and discoveries in such countries to the extent such technologies and discoveries are publicly known or disclosed in
countries where we do have patent protection or pending patent applications.

In addition, many countries have compulsory licensing laws under which a patent owner may be compelled to grant licenses to third parties. Many countries also limit the
enforceability of patents against government agencies or government contractors. In these countries, the patent owner may have limited remedies, which could materially
diminish the value of such patent. If we or any of our licensors are forced to grant a license to third parties with respect to any patents relevant to our business, our competitive
position may be impaired, and our business and financial condition may be adversely affected.

We may not identify relevant third-party patents or may incorrectly interpret the relevance, scope or expiration of a third-party patent, which might adversely affect our
ability to develop and market NPMs.

We cannot guarantee that any of our patent searches or analyses, including the identification of relevant patents, the scope of patent claims or the expiration of relevant patents,
are complete or thorough because there may be hundreds of thousands of relevant patents worldwide. We also cannot be certain that we have identified each and every third-
party patent and pending application in the United States and abroad that is relevant to or necessary for the commercialization of NPMs in any jurisdiction. The scope of a patent
claim is generally determined by an interpretation of the law, the written disclosure in a patent, and the patent’s prosecution history. Our interpretation of the relevance or the
scope of a patent or a pending application may be incorrect or not accepted by a court of competent jurisdiction. Our determination of the expiration date of any patent in the
United States or abroad that we consider relevant may be incorrect or inaccurate. Our failure to identify and correctly interpret relevant patents may negatively impact our ability
to develop and market NPMs.

In addition, there are several circumstances under which a patent application may not be published and accessible to us or our licensors. For example, patent applications in the
United States and many foreign jurisdictions are typically not published until 18 months after filing, but some patent applications in the United States may be maintained in secrecy
until the patents are issued. Publications in the scientific literature also often lag behind actual discoveries. Therefore, we cannot be certain that others have not filed patent
applications for technology covered by our issued patents or our pending applications, or that we were the first to invent the technology. Our competitors may have filed, and may
in the future file, patent applications covering NPMs or technology similar to ours without us knowing. Any such patent application may have priority over our patent applications
or patents, which could require us to procure rights to issued patents covering such technologies in order to avoid infringement claims.
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We may be subject to claims of ownership and other rights to our patents and other intellectual property by third parties.

Our confidentiality and intellectual property assignment agreements with our employees, consultants, and contractors generally provide that inventions conceived by the party in
the course of rendering services to us will be our exclusive intellectual property. While we require our employees, consultants, and contractors to assign such intellectual property
to us in the event that the intellectual property is not automatically assigned (e.g., as work made for hire), those agreements may not be honored and obligations to assign
intellectual property may be challenged or breached. Moreover, there may be some circumstances where we are unable to negotiate for such ownership rights and/or others
misappropriate those rights in the process.

We may be subject to claims that former employees, collaborators, or other third parties have an interest in our patents or other intellectual property as an owner, a joint owner, a
licensee, an inventor, or a co-inventor. In the latter two cases, the failure to name the proper inventors on a patent application can result in the patents issuing thereon being
unenforceable. Inventorship disputes may arise from conflicting views regarding the contributions of different individuals named as inventors, the effects of foreign laws where
foreign nationals are involved in the development of the subject matter of the patent, conflicting obligations of third parties involved in developing our power modules or as a
result of questions regarding co-ownership of potential joint inventions. Litigation may be necessary to resolve these and other claims challenging inventorship and/or ownership.
Alternatively, or additionally, we may enter into agreements to clarify the scope of our rights in such intellectual property. If we fail in defending any such claims, in addition to
paying monetary damages, we may lose exclusive ownership of, or right to use or license valuable intellectual property. Such an outcome could have a material adverse effect on
our business. Even if we are successful in defending against such claims, litigation could result in substantial costs and be a distraction to management and other employees.

Regulatory Risk Factors

Our SDA application for the 77 MWe power module has not yet been submitted to the NRC, and its approval is not guaranteed.

Increasing the power that can be generated by our NPMs is a key part of our plan, and our higher-capacity, 77 MWe power module is subject to obtaining SDA from the NRC. The
need to obtain that approval complicates our licensing process and could affect the planned deployment schedule for our first NPMs. In particular, if the NRC disagrees with our
licensing approach or the breadth and/or scope of the design changes proposed, the construction and operating license application process could take longer than currently
expected, which could materially and adversely affect our business. Further, we face the risk that the NRC could impose terms in the SDA that are not acceptable to us.

Our design is only approved in the United States and we must obtain approvals on a country-by-country basis before we can sell our products abroad, which approvals may
be delayed or denied or which may require modification to our design.

Our SMR design has not been approved in any country except the United States. Each country has its own safety approval that we must obtain before we can sell or install our
NPMs abroad. Foreign approval processes may differ materially from the NRC process, and approvals may be denied or delayed in foreign countries, or some countries may
require that we alter our design before obtaining approval. Denial or delay in approvals abroad could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our customers must obtain additional regulatory approvals before they construct power plants using our NPMs, and approvals may be denied or delayed.

The lead time to build a nuclear power facility is long, and requires site licensing and approvals from applicable regulatory agencies before a plant can be constructed. The
regulatory framework to obtain approvals is complex, and varies from country to country. Any delays experienced by our customers in siting a power plant using our products and
services could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our customers could incur substantial costs as a result of violations of, or liabilities under, environmental laws.

The operations and properties of our customers are subject to a variety of federal, state, local and foreign environmental, health and safety laws and regulations governing, among
other things, air emissions, wastewater discharges, management and disposal of hazardous, non-hazardous and radioactive materials and waste and remediation of releases of
hazardous materials. Although NuScale’s business is to design and sell technology rather than to construct and own or operate power plants, we must design our technology so it
complies with such laws and regulations. Compliance with environmental requirements could require our customers to incur significant expenditures or result in significant
restrictions on their operations, and the failure to comply with such laws and regulations, including failing to obtain any necessary permits, could result in substantial fines or
enforcement actions, including regulatory or judicial orders enjoining or curtailing operations or requiring our customers to conduct or fund remedial or corrective measures, install
pollution control equipment or perform other actions. More vigorous enforcement by regulatory agencies, the future enactment of more stringent laws, regulations or permit
requirements, including relating to climate change, or other unanticipated events may arise in the future and adversely impact the market for our products, which could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to stringent United States export and import control laws and regulations. Unfavorable changes in these laws and regulations or United States government
licensing policies, our failure to secure timely United States government authorizations under these laws and regulations, or our failure to comply with these laws and
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The inability to secure and maintain required export licenses or authorizations could negatively impact our ability to compete successfully or market our SMR technology for
commercial applications outside the United States. For example, if we were unable to obtain or maintain our licenses to export certain nuclear hardware, we would be effectively
prohibited from exporting our SMR technology in non-United States locations, which would limit the number of customers to those in the United States. In addition, if we were
unable to obtain authorization to export our technology, hardware, code or technical assistance, we would experience a limited market for our technology, which would provide a
competitive edge to international suppliers of SMRs. In both cases, these restrictions could lead to an adverse impact on our ability to sell our commercial technology. Similarly, if
we were unable to secure export authorization, we may need to implement design changes to our NPM to address issues with our domestic supplier chain, which may increase
costs or result in delays in delivery of new plants and subsequent additional NPMs when ordered.

Failure to comply with export control laws and regulations could expose us to civil or criminal penalties, fines, investigations, more onerous compliance requirements, loss of
export privileges, debarment from government contracts or limitations on our ability to enter into contracts with the United States government. In addition, any changes in export
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control regulations or United States government licensing policy, such as that necessary to implement United States government commitments to multilateral control regimes,
may restrict our operations.

Our business is subject to a wide variety of extensive and evolving government laws and regulations. Changes in and/or failure to comply with such laws and regulations
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Regulatory risk factors associated with our business also include:
• our ability to obtain additional applicable approvals, licenses or certifications from regulatory agencies, if required, and to maintain current approvals, licenses or

certifications;
• our ability to obtain regulatory approval for a site boundary emergency planning zone defined in such a fashion as will benefit the majority of U.S.-based customers;
• regulatory delays, delays imposed as a result of regulatory inspections, and changing regulatory requirements, may cause a delay in our ability to fulfill our existing or

future orders, or cause planned plants to not be completed at all, many of which may be out of our control, including natural disasters, changes in governmental
regulations or in the status of our regulatory approvals or applications or other events that force us to cancel or reschedule plant construction, which could have an
adverse impact on our business and financial condition; and

• challenges as a result of regulatory processes or in NuScale’s ability to secure the necessary permissions to establish these plant sites could delay our ability to achieve our
target build rate and could adversely affect our business.

General Risk Factors

COVID-19 and any future widespread public health crisis could negatively affect various aspects of our business, make it more difficult for us to meet our obligations to our
customers, and result in reduced demand for our products and services.

In an effort to halt the outbreak of COVID-19, a number of countries, including the United States, previously placed significant restrictions on travel, many businesses announced
extended closures, and many businesses and governmental agencies allowed employees to work remotely, which in some cases may reduce the effectiveness of those employees.
If there is a resurgence in COVID-19 cases, travel restrictions and business closures may in the future adversely affect our operations locally and worldwide, including our ability to
obtain regulatory approvals and to manufacture, market, sell or distribute our products, which could materially and adversely affect our business.

Many of our customers and suppliers worldwide were affected by COVID-19 and temporarily closed their facilities, which impacted the speed of our customer engagement and
research and development. The impact of COVID-19 on NuScale’s operational and financial performance will depend on various future developments, including the duration and
spread of the outbreak and impact on regulatory agencies, customers, suppliers and employees, all of which remain uncertain at this time.

Changes in tax laws or regulations may increase tax uncertainty and adversely affect results of our operations and our effective tax rate.

We will be subject to taxes in the United States and certain foreign jurisdictions. Due to economic and political conditions, tax rates in various jurisdictions, including the United
States, may be subject to change. Our future effective tax rates could be affected by changes in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the
valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities and changes in tax laws or their interpretation. In addition, we may be subject to income tax audits by various tax jurisdictions. An
adverse resolution by one or more taxing authorities could have a material impact on our finances. Further, we may be unable to utilize any net operating losses in the event a
change in control is determined to have occurred.

We may become involved in litigation that may materially adversely affect us.

We are currently named in a purported class action lawsuit related to the Transaction (see “Legal Proceedings”) and from time to time, we may become involved in various legal
proceedings relating to matters incidental to the ordinary course of our business, including intellectual property, commercial, product liability, employment, class action,
whistleblower and other litigation and claims, and governmental and other regulatory investigations and proceedings. Such matters can be time-consuming, divert management’s
attention and resources from the operation of our business and cause us to incur significant expenses or liability or require us to change our business practices. Because of the
potential risks, expenses and uncertainties of litigation, we may, from time to time, settle disputes, even where we believe that we have meritorious claims or defenses. Because
litigation is inherently unpredictable, we cannot assure you that the results of any of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Shares of Class A Common Stock or NuScale Corp Warrants

Our Organizational Documents designate the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the sole and exclusive forum for substantially all disputes between NuScale Corp
and its stockholders.

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws (“Organizational Documents”) provide that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware or, if such court does not have subject
matter jurisdiction thereof, another state or federal court located within the State of Delaware, shall be the exclusive forum for certain actions and claims. This choice of forum
provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with NuScale Corp or any of NuScale Corp’s directors, officers, or
other employees, which may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims. However, stockholders will not be deemed to have waived NuScale Corp’s compliance with the federal
securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder and this provision would not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act, which
provides for the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal courts with respect to all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations
thereunder, or the Securities Act. Further, Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all suits brought to enforce any duty or
liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. Accordingly, both state and federal courts have jurisdiction to entertain such claims. To prevent
having to litigate claims in multiple jurisdictions and the threat of inconsistent or contrary rulings by different courts, among other considerations, the
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Organizational Documents provide that the federal district courts of the United States of America will be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause of action
arising under the Securities Act. Accordingly, there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such provision with respect to suits brought to enforce any duty or liability
created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. If a court were to find the choice of forum provision contained in the Organizational Documents to be
inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, NuScale Corp may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could harm NuScale Corp’s
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our warrant agreement designates the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York as the sole and exclusive forum
for certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by holders of our warrants, which could limit the ability of warrant holders to obtain a favorable judicial
forum for disputes with our company.

Our warrant agreement provides that, subject to applicable law, (i) any action, proceeding or claim against us arising out of or relating in any way to the warrant agreement,
including under the Securities Act, will be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York, and
(ii) that we irrevocably submit to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be the exclusive forum for any such action, proceeding or claim. We will waive any objection to such
exclusive jurisdiction and that such courts represent an inconvenient forum.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, these provisions of the warrant agreement will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act or any other
claim for which the federal district courts of the United States of America are the sole and exclusive forum. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in
any of our warrants shall be deemed to have notice of and to have consented to the forum provisions in our warrant agreement. If any action, the subject matter of which is within
the scope of the forum provisions of the warrant agreement, is filed in a court other than a court of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York (a “foreign action”) in the name of any holder of our warrants, such holder shall be deemed to have consented to: (x) the personal jurisdiction of the state and
federal courts located in the State of New York in connection with any action brought in any such court to enforce the forum provisions (an “enforcement action”), and (y) having
service of process made upon such warrant holder in any such enforcement action by service upon such warrant holder’s counsel in the foreign action as agent for such warrant
holder.

This choice-of-forum provision may limit a warrant holder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with our company, which may discourage
such lawsuits. Alternatively, if a court were to find this provision of our warrant agreement inapplicable or unenforceable with respect to one or more of the specified types of
actions or proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations and result in a diversion of the time and resources of our management and board of directors.

The NuScale Corp Warrants are expected to be accounted for as liabilities and the changes in value of the NuScale Corp Warrants could have a material effect on our financial
results.

The NuScale Corp Warrants are currently classified as liabilities. Under this accounting treatment, we are required to measure the fair value of the NuScale Corp Warrants at the end
of each reporting period and recognize changes in the fair value from the prior period in our operating results for the current period. As a result of the recurring fair value
measurement, our financial statements and results of operations may fluctuate quarterly based on factors which are outside our control. We expect that we will recognize non-
cash gains or losses due to the quarterly fair valuation of the NuScale Corp Warrants and that such gains or losses could be material.

The price of Class A shares of common stock and NuScale Corp’s warrants may be volatile.

The price of Class A shares of common stock and NuScale Corp’s warrants may fluctuate due to a variety of factors, including:
• changes in the industries in which NuScale Corp and its customers operate;
• variations in its operating performance and the performance of its competitors in general;
• material and adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic or other future pandemics on the markets and the broader global economy;
• actual or anticipated fluctuations in NuScale Corp’s quarterly or annual operating results;
• the public’s reaction to NuScale Corp’s press releases, its other public announcements and its filings with the SEC;

• NuScale Corp’s failure or the failure of its competitors to meet analysts’ projections or guidance that NuScale Corp or its competitors may give to the market;
• additions and departures of key personnel;
• changes in laws and regulations affecting its business;
• commencement of, or involvement in, litigation involving NuScale Corp;
• changes in NuScale Corp’s capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of additional debt;
• publication of research reports by securities analysts about NuScale Corp, its competitors or its industry;
• sales of shares of Class A common stock by our stockholders, including those who purchased shares of Class A common stock in a private placement in connection with the

Merger; and
• general economic and political conditions such as recessions, interest rates, fuel prices, foreign currency fluctuations, international tariffs, social, political and economic

risks and acts of war or terrorism.
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These market and industry factors may materially reduce the market price of shares of Class A common stock and NuScale Corp’s warrants regardless of the operating performance
of NuScale Corp.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shares may be sold into the market. This could cause the market price of shares of Class A common stock to drop significantly,
even if NuScale Corp’s business is doing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of Class A common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a
large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of shares of Class A common stock.

As of November 1, 2022, there were (i) 51,855,154 shares of Class A common stock outstanding, (ii) 173,914,373 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon the exchange of
NuScale LLC Class B units (together with cancellation of an equal number of shares of NuScale Corp Class B common stock) pursuant to the procedures set forth in the A&R
NuScale LLC Agreement, and (iii) 31,395,072 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options and Warrants.

We have registered on a Form S-1 the potential resale of 209,870,307 shares of Class A common stock that otherwise could be subject to resale restrictions. We also have registered
on a Form S-8 an aggregate of 32,503,809 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon exercise of (i) NuScale LLC options issued under the Fourth Amended and Restated Equity
Incentive Plan of NuScale LLC and (ii) equity awards under the NuScale Corp 2022 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The market price of shares of Class A common stock could decline if the
holders of shares sell them or are perceived by the market as intending to sell them.

NuScale Warrants and Options will become exercisable for shares of Class A common stock, which, if exercised, would increase the number of shares eligible for future resale
in the public market and result in dilution to our stockholders.

Outstanding Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 18,459,203 shares of Class A common stock are exercisable in accordance with the terms of the warrant agreement governing
those securities. The exercise price of these warrants is $11.50 per share. In addition, outstanding options exercisable in exchange for an aggregate of 13,032,033 shares of Class A
common stock are or will become exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Fourth Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan of NuScale LLC. To the extent such Warrants
or options are exercised, additional shares of Class A common stock will be issued, which will result in dilution to the holders of common stock and increase the number of shares
eligible for resale in the public market. Sales of substantial numbers of such shares in the public market or the fact that such warrants may be exercised could adversely affect the
prevailing market prices of Class A common stock.

Investors’ ability to make transactions in NuScale Corp’s securities could be limited and if NuScale cannot maintain its listing on the NYSE, NuScale Corp may be subject to
additional trading restrictions.

An active trading market for NuScale Corp’s securities may not be sustained. In addition, NuScale Corp may be unable to maintain the listing of its securities on the NYSE in the
future.

The National Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996, which is a federal statute, prevents or preempts the states from regulating the sale of certain securities, which are
referred to as “covered securities.” If NuScale Corp’s securities were not listed on the NYSE or another national securities exchange, such securities would not qualify as covered
securities and we would be subject to regulation in each state in which we offer our securities because states are not preempted from regulating the sale of securities that are not
covered securities.

Reports published by analysts, including projections in those reports that differ from our actual results, could adversely affect the price and trading volume of our Class A
common stock.

Securities research analysts may establish and publish their own periodic projections for NuScale Corp. These projections may vary widely and may not accurately predict the
results we actually achieve. Our share price may decline if our actual results do not match the projections of these securities research analysts. Similarly, if one or more of the
analysts who write reports on us downgrades our stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our share price could decline. If one or more of these
analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us regularly, our share price or trading volume could decline. Moreover, if no analysts commence coverage of us, the
market price and volume for our common shares could be adversely affected.

We are subject to changing law and regulations regarding regulatory matters, corporate governance and public disclosure that have increased and will continue to increase
our costs and the risk of non-compliance.

We are subject to rules and regulations by various governing bodies, including the SEC, which are charged with the protection of investors and the oversight of companies whose
securities are publicly traded, and to new and evolving regulatory measures under applicable law. Our efforts to comply with new and changing laws and regulations have resulted
in, and likely will continue to result in, increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention.

Moreover, because these laws, regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance becomes
available. This evolution may result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and additional costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to NuScale Corp’s disclosure
and governance practices. If we fail to address and comply with these regulations and any subsequent changes, we may be subject to penalty and our business may be harmed.

We may be subject to securities litigation, which is expensive and could divert management attention.

The market price of our Class A common stock may be volatile and, in the past, companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been subject to
securities class action litigation. We may be the target of this type of litigation in the future. Securities litigation against us could result in substantial costs and divert management’s
attention from other business concerns, which could seriously harm our business.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
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Not applicable

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable

Item 6. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules

(a) Exhibits.

Exhibit


Number Description

2.1† Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 13, 2021, by and among Spring Valley, Merger Sub and NuScale LLC (incorporated by reference
to Annex A to the Proxy Statement/Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 8, 2022)

2.2 Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 28, 2021, by and among Spring Valley, Merger Sub and NuScale LLC
(incorporated by reference to Annex A-I to the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 8, 2022)

2.3 Second Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 14, 2022, by and among Spring Valley, Merger Sub and NuScale LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Spring Valley’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 15, 2022)

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of NuScale Power Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 5,
2022)

3.2 Bylaws of NuScale Power Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 5, 2022)

4.1 Specimen Warrant Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed by the Registrant on November
20, 2020)

4.2 Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company and Spring Valley Acquisition Corp., dated November 23, 2020
(incorporated by reference to Annex L to the Proxy Statement/ Prospectus filed on April 8, 2022)

10.1 Amendment No. 3 to Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement, dated February 28, 2023, between NuScale LLC and CFPP LLC (portions of this
exhibit have been redacted)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Annual Report on From 10-K filed March 16, 2023)

10.2 Long Lead Material Reimbursement Agreement, dated February 28, 2023, between NuScale LLC and CFPP LLC (portions of this exhibit have been
redacted)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed March 16, 2023)

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(d)/15d-14(d)

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(d)/15d-14(d)

101 .INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL).

†Schedules and exhibits to this Exhibit omitted pursuant to Regulation S-K Item 601(b)(2). The Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or

exhibit to the SEC upon request.
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SIGNATURES

NuScale Power Corporation

Date By: /s/ John Hopkins

November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 Name: John Hopkins

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date By: /s/ Chris Colbert

November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 Name Chris Colbert

Title: Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1 CERTAIN IDENTIFIED INFORMATION, MARKED BY [**], HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THIS AGREEMENT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND (II) IS THE TYPE OF INFORMATION THAT THE REGISTRANT
TREATS AS PRIVATE OR CONFIDENTIAL.   Page 1 of 16  Execution Version  Amendment No. 3 to Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement  This Amendment No. 3 ("Amendment 3") to that certain Development Cost
Reimbursement Agreement, by and between CFPP LLC ("CFPP LLC") and NuScale Power, LLC ('NuScale"), dated as of December 31, 2020 (as previously amended and as amended by this Amendment 3, "DCRA") is made by

NuScale and CFPP LLC, effective as of February 28, 2023 ("Effective Date of this Amendment 3"). Each of CFPP LLC and NuScale are herein referred to as a "Party" and together as the "Parties." Unless defined herein,
capitalized terms have the meanings assigned to them in the DCRA.  RECITALS  WHEREAS, effective December 31, 2020, UAMPS and Fluor Enterprises, Inc. ("Fluor") executed that certain Development Agreement

("Development Agreement");  WHEREAS, UAMPS and NuScale entered into the DCRA as of December 31, 2020;  WHEREAS, UAMPS assigned the DCRA and the Development Agreement to CFPP LLC as of December 31,
2020;  WHEREAS, effective April 30, 2021, the Parties executed the first amendment to the DCRA and the first amendment to the Development Agreement to extend the period of performance of certain obligations; 
WHEREAS, effective May 31, 2021, the Parties executed the second amendment to the DCRA to extend the period of performance of certain additional obligations, reflect the adoption of a six-unit Project, and adopt

mutually agreed changes to certain inputs to the Price Target assumptions; and  WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the DCRA to adopt mutually agreed changes to certain inputs to Price Target assumptions based on
changes in the energy, commodity and capital markets, raising the owner's cost cap, and include a requirement that the failure to achieve 80% subscription of 462 MW (370 MW) ("Subscription Target") by the earlier of
the COLA submittal or February 1, 2024 be considered equivalent to the Project failing to meet the ECT along with certain related obligations for CFPP LLC.  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises

and covenants made herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and with the intent to be legally bound hereby, the Patties agree as follows: 
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Page 2 of 16  AGREEMENT The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into this Amendment 3 as if set forth at length herein.  2. In Paragraph 2.c. of the DCRA, the following sentence is added at the end of the
paragraph:  CFPP LLC and NuScale agree to make commercially reasonable efforts to collaborate to obtain additional member subscriptions to power sales contracts and to obtain additional investment in, and
ownership of, CFPP LLC. CFPP LLC and NuScale shall develop a 2023 Subscription Plan, prior to the Effective Date of this Amendment 3, that defines the primary activities for collaboration in 2023 and will make

NuScale's obligations with respect to achieving the Subscription Target contingent on CFPP LLC implementing the activities identified in the Subscription Plan.  3. The title of Article 3 is deleted and replaced in its
entirety, as follow:  ARTICLE 3. Subscription, Economic Model, Financing Plan and ECT Failure.  4. A new first paragraph is inserted at the beginning of Article 3, as follows:  CFPP LLC's desire to pursue the Project is

contingent on the Project meeting or exceeding the Subscription Target on the earlier of the COLA submittal or February 1, 2024. The Subscription Target will be satisfied when the sum of Power Sales Contract
Entitlement Shares combined with additional equity contracts including the Current Project Subscription total 80% of the total Project gross capacity (370 MW). Subscription may be via contractual equity subscription

or power purchase agreement [**]. NuScale's obligations with respect to subscription shall terminate and there shall be no reimbursement obligation associated with the Subscription Target once the Subscription
Target is satisfied. As of December 1, 2022, the Current Project Subscription is 116 M W. Therefore, additional commitments for the equivalent of 254 MWe from the Project are required to meet the Subscription Target.

Any reduction to the Current Project Subscription will not
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Page 3 of 16  alter the additional amount of subscription required to achieve the Subscription Target.  5. The former introductory paragraph of Article 3 shall replace the following sentence, "CFPP LLC's desire to pursue
the Project is contingent on the Project LCOE, calculated from time to time as set forth below, being comparable to a Price Target of $58.00/MWh in July 2020 dollars for a target COD of the Project as set out in the

Initial Project Plan or any Revised Project Plan." with the following, "CFPP LLC's desire to pursue the Project is contingent on the Project LCOE, calculated from time to time (PCE 2 projected to be completed by the end
of calendar year 2023) as set forth below, being comparable to a Price Target of $89.00/MWh on July I, 2022 dollars for a target COD of the Project as set out in the Initial Project Plan or any Revised Project Plan."  6. In

the third sentence of the former introductory paragraph of Article 3, delete "(Adjusted Price Target)".  7. Paragraph 3.a. of the DCRA is deleted and replaced in its entirety, as follows:  Failing the ECT at certain
milestones will permit CFPP LLC to terminate its continued participation in the Project (i.e., exercise an off-ramp) as provided in Paragraph 5.a below. The Parties agree that the ECT shall be run as promptly as possible

following the achievement of the applicable milestone as set forth in Paragraph 3.b. CFPP LLC shall accept the PCE/OCE when delivered by Fluor if prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Development
Agreement for preparation of a PCE/OCE. CFPP C shall provide the PCE/OCE and the most recent Financing Plan to NuScale within two business days of receiving an acceptable PCE/OCE from Fluor. NuScale shall run an
ECT promptly after receiving the PCE/OCE and the Financing Plan from CFPP LLC, based on the mutually agreed upon schedule for running such ECTs as described in Paragraph 3.b below. Thereafter, once the ECT Result

is available, CFPP LLC shall have sixty (60) days to deliver written notice of its intent to terminate its participation in the Project, including termination of this Agreement, any other CFPP LLC agreement with NuScale,
and the Development Agreement (or the EPC Contract, if executed) pursuant to Paragraph 5 a. due to an ECT Failure, if desired. CFPP LLC shall also have sixty (60) days to deliver written notice of its intent to terminate

its participation in the Project, including termination of this Agreement, any other CFPP LLC agreement with NuScale, and the Development Agreement (or the EPC Contract, if executed) pursuant to Paragraph 5.a.
following the occurrence of any of the events listed in Paragraphs 5.a.I or 5.a.2 or the failure to meet the Subscription Target by the earlier of the COLA submittal or February I, 2024. In the absence of
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Page 4 of 16  delivery of such written notice, and except as provided in Paragraph 3 f below with respect to the Class I PCE, CFPP LLC shall not be entitled to terminate its participation in the Project based on an ECT
Failure until the next ECT is run, when this process shall be repeated. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Paragraph 3.a, CFPP LLC shall also have the right to terminate its participation in the Project at any time for
its own convenience pursuant to Paragraph 5.c.  8. The first sentence of Paragraph 5.a. of the DCRA is deleted and replaced in its entirety, as follows:  CFPP LLC Termination for Insufficient Subscription or Failure of the

ECT. In addition to any other remedy available to CFPP LLC under this Article 5, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 2.c. of the DCRA if the Project
subscription fails to meet or exceed the Subscription Target on the earlier of the COLA submittal or February I, 2024, or there is an ECT Failure as a result of an ECT run performed after the Effective Date, CFPP LLC will

have the right to (i) terminate this Agreement, and any other agreements between CFPP LLC and NuScale regarding the Project, by delivery of written notice thereof to NuScale, and (ii) recover a portion of its Net
Development Costs from NuScale, calculated as the lesser of (x) the Net Development Costs incurred in the current development Phase multiplied by the Phase Reimbursable Percentage given in Exhibit B, Table B-1,

plus all prior Reimbursement Amounts accrued from prior Project development Phases and (y) the Reimbursement Cap given in Exhibit B, Table B-1. 9. A new second sentence/paragraph is inserted in Paragraph 5.a. of
the DCRA as follows:  The Reimbursement Caps provided in Table B-l are based upon the mutual agreement of the Parties that NuSca1e has incurred a separate reimbursement obligation under the terms of a separate
LLM Agreement that, together with NuScale's reimbursement obligations under the DCRA, collectively provide full reimbursement for the full Net Development Costs including LLM. The caps in Table B-l are not inclusive
of NuScale's obligations in the LLM Agreement. If at any time during the course of execution of Work in Phase 1 the Reimbursement Cap provided in Table B-l results in a reimbursement obligation at the end of Phase 1
that is less than the Net Development Costs under the DCRA, the Parties agree to renegotiate the Reimbursement Cap in Table B-l to result in a reimbursement obligation of the full Net Development Costs under the

DCRA.  10. A new second sentence is inserted in Paragraph 5.b. of the DCRA as follows:   
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Page 5 of 16  If NuScale does not instruct CFPP to convey its ownership interest in the Project Assets to NuScale within sixty (60) days, CFPP may convey the Project Assets to DOE pursuant to Attachment B6 to the New
Multi-year Award; provided, however, the Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to extend the time for NuScale to provide its instruction should it take more time for DOE and NuScale to take any steps needed for
NuScale to take ownership of the Project Assets. For the avoidance doubt, any such mutually agreed upon extension will not affect the time period by which NuScale is to make its reimbursement payment to CFP P. 
11. Paragraph 5.g. of the DCRA is deleted and replaced in its entirety, as follows:  NuScale Termination for Convenience. NuScale may terminate this Agreement on or before March I, 2023 if it is unable to reach an

agreement with DOE relating to the conveyance of LLM to NuScale in the event of CFPP LLC Termination for Insufficient Subscription or Failure of the ECT. The terms and effect of such termination shall be the same as
the terms and effect of a CFPP LLC Termination for Insufficient Subscription or Failure of the ECT as set forth in Paragraph 5.a.  12. The Definition of "Net Development Costs" provided in Exhibit A is deleted and

replaced in its entirety, as follows:  "Net Development Costs" means (A) costs under task orders issued under the Development Agreement (or under the EPC Contract) and any agreement between CFPP LLC and NuScale
regarding the Project, including in each case COLA development costs, including cost for procurement of Long Lead Materials (LLM) as specifically defined as LLM in authorizing Purchase Orders from CFPP LLC to

NuScale, plus (B) CFPP LLC's costs to acquire water rights for the Project, plus (C) CFPP LLC's costs for interconnection of the Project with the transmission system at the Antelope Substation, in each case as incurred
after the Effective Date, plus (D) costs and fees paid by CFPP LLC to secure financing or a DOE loan guaranty, other than interest payments, plus (E) other Owner's Costs as identified in the Revised Project Plan or any

update thereto, plus (F) Interest paid by CFPP LLC with respect to any indebtedness used to fund the items (A), (B), (C), (D) and (F), (G) net of any DOE, or other third-party, payments to CFPP LLC for such costs, and (H) net
of reimbursement for LLM under any agreement, but excluding costs for UAMPS' employees' salaries.   13. The Definition of "Adjusted Price Target" provided in Exhibit A is deleted and replaced in its entirety, as follows: 
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Page 6 of 16  "Adjusted Price Target" has the meaning set forth in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  14. In Exhibit A, a new definition is added, as follows:  "Contingency" represents a budget for costs associated with
variances from best estimate costs associated with uncertainty in the project quantities, productivities, vendor cost estimates, or event-based risks.  15. In Exhibit A, a new definition is added, as follows:  "ECT Date" is

the date when the ECT is evaluated pursuant to Article 3 and Article 5 and Exhibit B of the Agreement.  16. The definition of "Owner's Costs" provided in Exhibit A is deleted and replaced in its entirety, as follows: 
"Owner's Costs" means the costs associated with water acquisition, land acquisition, COLA development, NRC review of COLA, federal agency fees for COLA review, post-COLA CFPP LLC submittals to the NRC, CFPP LLC's

COLA legal costs, CFPP LLC's administration and supply management for the Project, CFPP LLC's post-COLA engineering services for the Project, the Project site training center, Project permits, CFPP LLC's staff
development (core and executives) for the Project, Project utilities, Project security facilities, the Project switchyard, the Project intake structure and cooling facilities, transmission facilities/upgrades necessary for the
Project;-and contingency on the Owner's scope; but excluding any costs associated with the Design Certification. 17. Exhibit B of the DCRA is deleted and replaced in its entirety by the attached Exhibit B.  18. Exhibit C
of the DCRA is deleted and replaced in its entirety by the attached Exhibit C.  19. Except as set forth in this Amendment 3, the DCRA is unaffected and shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.

If there is conflict between this Amendment 3 and the DCRA, the terms of this Amendment 3 will prevail.  [signature page follows]
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  Page 7 ‐ 16  WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this Amendment 3 as of the Effective Date of this Amendment 3  .  For CFPP LLC:  For NuScale:    By:  Name:  Mason Baker  Name:   Title: 
President  Title:  
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Page 7‐16  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this Amendment 3 as of the Effective Date of this Amendment 3.     For CRPP LLC:   By:    _____________________________    Name:    Name:   Title:    Title:
    For NuScale: Name: John Hopkins Title: President & CEO
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  Page 8 ‐ 16  EXHIBIT B DCRA Reimbursement Percentages and Caps and Milestones  Table B-l DCRA Reimbursement Percentages and Caps  *Pursuant to Section 3.e. of the DCRA the Parties will revisit the Default Caps
for Phase 2 and Phase 3 near the end of Phase I. Further, the Parties acknowledge the Default Caps are less than the Net Development Cost as currently projected in the Initial Project Plan.  Where,  Phase 1 is from the
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Effective Date until the later of the COLA submission and delivery of PCE2 (including delivery of the ECT run for PCE2),  Phase 2 is from the later of the COLA submission and delivery of PCE2 (including delivery of the ECT
run for PCE2) until delivery of PCE1 (including delivery of the ECT run for PCEI), and  Phase 3 is from delivery of PCEI (including delivery of the ECT run for PCEI) until FNTP.     End of Exhibit B   Development Phase Phase

Reimbursable Percentage Phase Non-Reimbursable Percentage Cumulative Reimbursement Cap Cumulative Default Caps Phase 1 100% 0% $34.5M $34.5M Phase 2 20% 80% $60M $120M Phase 3 20% 80% $60M
$180M
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Page 9‐16  EXHIBIT C Price Target, Economic Model, Financing Plan and Economic Competitiveness Test Guidelines  Price Target:  At the Effective Date of Amendment 3, the Parties have agreed on a Price Target of 
$89.00/MWh with a Price Target Date of July 1, 2022, which is based on a 6-module, 462 MWe NuScale Plant using dry cooling.  [**]   
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    [**]                                Page 10 – 16   
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    [**]                    Page 11‐ 16     
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    [**]                    Page 12 16   
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    [**]                      Page 13 ‐ 16 
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     [**]                      Page 14‐ 16 
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     [**]                      Page 15‐ 16 
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    [**]                      [**]  Page 16‐ 16 
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    Baseline Economic Model  Inputs to Economic Model  Fixed Inputs not subject to change at an ECT  I) Power Rating per Module — Gross (Inputs F7): 77  2) Number of Modules (Inputs F6): 6  [**]          Debt Inputs 
Input from Financing Plan referenced in Economic Model  End of Exhibit C                      Page 17‐ 16   
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Exhibit 10.2 CERTAIN IDENTIFIED INFORMATION, MARKED BY [**], HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THIS AGREEMENT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH (I) NOT MATERIAL AND (II) IS THE TYPE OF INFORMATION THAT THE REGISTRANT
TREATS AS PRIVATE OR CONFIDENTIAL.   Execution Version  1  Long Lead Material Reimbursement Agreement  This Long Lead Material Reimbursement Agreement ("LLM Agreement") is made by NuScale Power, LLC

("NuScale") and CFPP LLC, effective as of February 28, 2023 ("Effective Date").  Each of CFPP LLC and NuScale are herein referred to as a "Party' and together as the "Parties." The Parties intend that this LLM Agreement
shall operate concurrent and in conjunction with that certain Development Cost Reimbursement Agreement, by and between CFPP LLC and NuScale, dated as of December 31, 2020, as amended ("DCRA"). Unless defined

herein, capitalized terms have the meanings assigned to them in the DCRA.  RECITALS  WHEREAS, UAMPS and NuScale entered into the DCRA as of December 31, 2020;  WHEREAS, UAMPS assigned the DCRA and the
Development Agreement to CFPP LLC as of December 31, 2020;  WHEREAS, effective April 30, 2021, the Parties executed the first amendment to the DCRA and the first amendment to the Development Agreement to

extend the period of performance of certain obligations;  WHEREAS, effective May 3 1, 2021, the Parties executed the second amendment to the DCRA to extend the period of performance of certain additional
obligations, reflect the adoption of a six-unit Project, and adopt mutually agreed changes to certain inputs to the Price Target assumptions;  WHEREAS, on or about February 28, 2023, the Parties intend to enter into the
third amendment to the DCRA to adopt mutually agreed changes to certain inputs to Price Target assumptions based on changes in the energy, commodity and capital markets, raising the owner's cost cap, and include
a requirement that the failure to achieve 80% subscription of 462 MW (370 MW) ("Subscription Target") by the completion of the ECT associated with the later of the completion of the Class 2 PCE or the COLA submittal

be considered equivalent to the Project failing to meet the ECT subject to with certain related obligations for CFPP LLC;  WHEREAS, CFPP LLC plans to place orders for certain Long Lead Materials ("LLM"), as further
detailed in Exhibit 1, pursuant to terms in the OEM Equipment Supply Agreement, which, while well developed, is still being negotiated by the Parties; and  WHEREAS, the Parties intend that certain reimbursement

obligations in the DCRA shall also extend to LLM to the extent such LLM has been paid for by CFPP LLC.  NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants made herein, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and with the intent to be legally bound hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 
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Execution Version  2  AGREEMENT  I. The Recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into this LLM Agreement as if set forth at length herein.  2. NuScale's obligations with respect to reimbursement are related to
the LLM in Exhibit I hereto and such reimbursement obligations are limited to LLM ordered by CFPP LLC and amounts actually paid to NuScale by CFPP LLC for such LLM, any such reimbursement will be at 100% of costs
actually paid to NuScale by CFPP.  3. The Parties acknowledge that orders placed for LLM shall be subject to the terms of the OEM Equipment Supply Agreement as of the later of how it exists as of the Effective Date or

as finally executed by the Parties. CFPP LLC shall have no payment obligation to NuScale for the LLM until the parties have reached agreement on an appropriate task order or on the OEM Equipment Supply
Agreement.  4. NuScale agrees that should NuScale be obligated to reimburse CFPP LLC pursuant to the terms of Paragraph 3.a. of the DCRA, that the reimbursement obligation shall include amounts actually paid to
NuScale by CFPP LLC for LLM up to the reimbursement cap in Exhibit 1. It is the intent of this LLM Agreement to include all the same terms, options, and remedies to CFPP LLC and NuScale as are included in the DCRA

as they relate to the reimbursement obligation.  5. Should NuScale complete reimbursement for LLM as provided in this Agreement, NuScale shall have the option to take possession of the LLM. Should NuScale elect to
take the LLM, NuScale will have all of CFPP LLC's right, title and interest in and to these projects assets with no amounts owed by or due from CFPP LLC with respect to the LEM.  6. The DOE's contingent rights with
respect to the Project Assets, including the LLM, as set forth in Attachment B6 to the New Multi-year Award, are not affected by this Agreement and will be subject to a letter agreement to be negotiated between

NuScale and DOE.  7. NuScale shall provide credit support for its reimbursement obligation for LLM costs under the same terms and conditions as the DCRA.  [signature page follows]

slide3

https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us


REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com |
Contact Us

©2023 Refi nitiv.  Al l  rights reserved. Republ ication or redistribution of Refi nitiv content, including
by fram ing or sim i lar m eans, is prohibi ted
w ithout the prior w ri tten consent of Refi nitiv.  'Refi nitiv' and the Refi nitiv logo  are
registered tradem arks of Refi nitiv and i ts affi l iated
com panies.

68/75

Execution Version  3    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this LLM Agreement as of the Effective Date. For CFPP LLC:  For NuScale:  By:    Name:  Mason Baker  Name:  Title:  President  Title: 
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Execution Version    WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this LLM Agreement as of the Effective Date.  For CFPP LLC: For NuScale:    Name: Name: John Hopkins     Title:Title: President & CEO      3
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Execution Version      Exhibit 1  Long Lead Materials  The following is a list of LLM the total value of which shall not exceed $49 million during Phase I as that term is defined in the DCRA. NuScale's reimbursement
obligation is limited to LLM ordered and amounts actually paid to NuScale by CFPP LCC, less any cost share paid by DOE, for the following LLM: [**]   4 
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
I, John Hopkins, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of NuScale Power Corporation;

   

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

   

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 

  (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

     

  (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

     

  (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     

  (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

  (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     

  (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
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 Date: November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 By: /s/ John Hopkins

    John Hopkins

    Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
I, Chris Colbert, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of NuScale Power Corporation;

   

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

   

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

 

  (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

     

  (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

     

  (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

     

  (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
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  (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

     

  (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 

 Date: November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 By: /s/ Chris Colbert

    Chris Colbert

    Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

 
Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 of NuScale Power Corporation (the “Company”), as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John Hopkins, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
 

  (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

     

  (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 

November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 /s/ John Hopkins

  John Hopkins

  Chief Executive Officer

  (Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2022March 31, 2023 of NuScale Power, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Chris Colbert, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge and belief:
 

  (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

     

  (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 

November 14, 2022May 9, 2023 /s/ Chris Colbert

  Chris Colbert

  Chief Financial Officer

  (Principal Financial Officer)
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